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“zport on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Zoiniop '
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e nave sudited the accompanting financial statements ef Multipurpose Financs Company Limited

--.=<t o the effect of matters mentioned in- Basis of Qualified Opinion Section, the aforésaid financi
==menls presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Financiat institution

the Financlal Institution™) which comprise the Statement of Financial Positjon as at Ashad 31, 2078
<7 18. 2019), the Statement of Profit or Loss (ingluding Other Comprehensive Income), the Staternent

—~

- Change in Equily.and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended on that date, ang 2

-mary of the significant accounting policies and gther ex:planatory information (hereafter referred to as
= finencial statements”). ) -

& .
lon, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and

»

25

)L_\_J

=3 31, 2076 (July 18, 2019) and its financial performance, changes in equity, cash ficws

for the vs

T
 }

L
f

¢nded, and @ summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory nformator, in

---"dance with Nepal Finarcial Reporting Standards and comply with Companies Act 2083 and Bank
-~ minancial institution Act, 2073. ' {

L

= “onducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with Neps! Standga-c
- -3, Our responsibilities under those Standardsr.%{e fifrther described in the Auditor's &
" "2 Audlt of the Consolidated Minancial Stalements saction of our repoft. We are i
~i2l Institution in accordance with the Handbook of the Code of Ethics-for Profess :
the [nstituf;\g of Charterad Accountants of Nepal {ICAN) and we have.fuifilieg our other ethics!
sibllities in accordance with the ICAN's Handbock of the Code of Ethics for Professiona
niants. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate ‘o
= /ide & basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements. "

~~= financial position of the Financial Institution as at Ashad 31, 2078 (July 16, 2019} =nd. its fnanaial

ormance, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended wil! change if 1
“wing poinis ars considered:

i@l instiution Is required to maintain personnel training reserve minimum 3% of o
tunder Point No. 8 of Nepal Rastra Rank Directive No. B/075.

.

rial valuation of employee long term benefits’ is required under Para 66 and B7
ing Standard (NAS)-19 'to recognize adequate employee long term benefits in the reial

: s. The financial institution has recognized staff gratuity as per its policy which is a deviaticr
~om NAS-18, : ? '

2

‘ b4

S v

naj Financial Reporting Standard (NFRS)-§ requires that a financial asset shaill be measured 2
27 value. Similarly, NAS 40 requires fair value of investment property. The financizi nstitution nz

sidered faikwvalue of its investment property and impairment loss ha% not bean recogni
a deviation from NFRS-9 and NAS-40. -
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it Other than the Financial Statements andiAudl’.tor’s Heport Thereon

-mauon comprlces the mfr}rmat*on inc luded in the Managerrent Raoolr R
s and Chairman’s Ststement but does not include the financlal StB*éFF’““I

74

T_hB financial stz ements ‘does n%t cc»\?er the other rﬂf"‘mat!Oﬂ and we do not exprass zny

cor'r‘h_szor’t ereon. - ‘ ¢

- connection witheour gudit of the financial statements, our respmssbzhty JS 1o read ine othar &
S i geing 50, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with t”: |

RS ct our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or othenvies aﬂpnarc to oe
¢ rmissiated, :

l‘)

4

-2sed on (ne work we have performed we conclude that there is a material migsias ement of tnis siner
n, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regara’

: bl

sponzibility of Management and those Charged with Governance for the Financisl Statermnars

with Nﬂr,el Cmanﬁial Repomno L?tardurds and for such .n'emal co
.necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that z
whether due to fraud and error. :

>rsparing the financial statements, managergnt Igzresponsitle for dssessing the Fin
comiinue as going congern, disclosing, as appncable matiers related s goin
v concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to lic
~stivtomnorts ceﬁ&e the operations, or has no rgalrstic alternative but {o doso.

~= Zozrd of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Fmanma! institution’s financial reporting process.

v

“ .Zhor's Responsibilities fof the Audit of the Financial Statements

Q
Guld

silves are fo obtain reasonable assurance atout whether the'financial stziemets esavwnole o2

©om material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an-

S guditors regori
~34e8 6ur opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee tn
=.2it conducted in accordance with NSAs wili always detect a material misstatem when 4
“gstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, in: dua.la Grois

ate, théy could reasonably be expected {o nfluence the economic uacmrons of 4sers laken on
cf these financizal sratemﬂnts - >

art of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment.and mainisn
-ofessignal skepticism through the audit, % 9 ;

¥

] o . : g9
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icentify and aSsess the risks of material misstatement of the financia! stateme: nts, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform-audit procedutes responsive to those 1'151-(8; and abtzin zugh
evidence that is sufficent and appropnate to provide the basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstafernent resulting from fraud is higher than for one resuitng from arror. as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, mtenhondl omissions, misrepresentauo”: or the overrige of
internal control. v

. Omam an understanding of internal controls relevant to the auditin order to rie s
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressi
gffectiveness of the Financial Institution's internal control,

1 audit procedures
an poinian an i

"|
2!
~
e




- zt=d safeguards. .

224 on our examination, we would iike to further report that:

¥ i
1

I
Evaluate the appropriatengss of accounting policies used and' the .reasonablensss of accourtin
estimates and related disclosures made by ‘management,

Conclude on'the appropriateness of manag’emeaﬁs use of the going concem Lasis of acen
and, based on the audit evidence obtained whethef a material on unceriainty axisic related to evar:
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Financial Institution’s ab; oy v continue as
going concern. If we conclide that a material uncerainty exists, we are required 1o draw attentior
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in tha financial statements or, f such disclosures &
nadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions jare based on the audit evicerbe obtained uo
the date of auditors report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Financial institution
ic cease to continue as'a geing concern. i . ' ;

0y W

1
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el

luate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
cisclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transaglions and svent
in & manner that achieves fair presentation. . . . : i

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial informetidn of the
Susiness activities within the Financial Institytion Yo express an opinion in the financia! sials .

< are responsible.for the direction, ‘suspension &hd perfermance of the Financ=! institution -aua;
v¥e remain solely responsibid for our Audit opinion, | o

.-'l:‘rr:

- communicate with those charged with govemanc.é regarding, among-cthar matiers, the plannsg
=-ope and fiming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

nal control that we identify during our audit.
38¢ provide those charged with governance with a statement that we nave somipiled with e
it ethical requirement regarding independence, and to commupicate with them all ref

- matiers that may reasonably be thought to bear on cur independence, zng wi

- :zorton Other Legal and Regulatory Requirementg_

“¥2 have obtained all the information and explanations, which wers considered necessary -
Hurnose for our audit, : _ .

The Statement of Financial Position, 'Staterr%nt o? Profit or Loss {including Ohar Comprenans
‘ngome}, Statement of CasH Flows and aftached Schiadules dealt Wiih'by this report are pre:
a8 per procedure and format prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bark 'and agree with the booke of
focount maintdingd by the Financial Institution! . ' '

"he proper books of accounts as required by the'law have been mainteinea by the Financ:
imstitution. ) . - '

During our examination of the books of account of the Financial Institution, we have Not corme
RUOSs any cases where any office holder of the Financial Institution has acted contrary to ing
erovisions of law or caused Icss or damage to the Financial Institution. . EE o

Financial Institution has been functioning as per the Directives of Nepa! Rasirz Bark

We have not come across any frauduience in the accounts.'basad O oUr sampiz examingtion of

the hooks, : : q .

0 o .

O CAARTERED

For, Sanjay Chaudhary & Asspgiates
Chartered Accountanis

Sanjay Kumar Chaudbhery, FCA
i : Principal
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ultlpurpose Finance Corhpany Limited

Statement of Profit or Loss

For the year ended 31 Asar 207}3 {July 16, 2018)

1
2076 Asar 31 2075 Asar 32
“'“'esl mcome 38,917,348 37,926,868
Tterest expense R i 26,545 892 19_06_5_ 142
Het interest income 1__ 12,371,356 18,861,826
~ee and commission income 431 2,516,290 1,701,647
“ce and commission expense 432 -
tlat fee &nd commission income | 2,516,280 1,701,647
Net interest, fee .anc_lwgommrsson income : 1d,88?,646_ 20,563,473
“let rading mcome ' i4.33 —
“iher operating income ) T a4 B
Total operating income . 14,387,646 20,562,473
mpairment charge/ (reversal) for loans and other losses 4.35 (2,880,720) 944__316_
et operating income 17,368,367 19,619,157
Operating expense '
Persanﬁ'efé'igeﬂsﬁé's' 4.38 4,606,970 5,003,559
Other operaling expenées - 4.37 2.949-."8-06". 2,497,134
Dapraciation & a“nort1sat|on_- =T 4.38 280,289 - 2é8,?18
Opemlmg Profit 10,031,292 11,829,735
Non operating income 4.39 y
Non cperating expense. T T 4,40 ) L -
Srofit before income tax 10,031,292 11,829,735
noome tax expense 4.41
Current Tax 2 895,773 " 2780,116
Defermed Tax o - (1,041,959) (927 789)
Profit for the year 8177458 B 9,977 'EQZ
Profit attnbmable to:
Squiy holders of the Bank 8,177,458 9.977 407
Non-controlling interest o e -
Profit for the year T BA77,458 5,977,407
Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share 19.72 24.08
Diluted earnings per share 19.72 24.06

AN
G @ o

_Ajit K. Mishra Fhul Mishra Y e

Managing Directer Chairperson Principal
’ Sanjay Chaudhary &
Associales

Panchanand Jha CA. Sanjay K. Chaudhary

Dy General Manager

Arpana Kuma(i Mishra Jajil Prakash Thakur Shivaharl P, Bhattarai

Director . Director Director
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Muitipurpose Finance Company Limited

Statemant of Cash Flows:

For the year ended 31 Asar 2076 {July 16, 2019)

2076 Asar 31 2075 Asar 32
ﬂ@.@e&!@.. . e Tl 38,917,348
==s5 and other in income received © AR R "2,516,280
. ¥ ] : (26,545,992)
_' T TTTTTTTERE08,84) (3,820, 535)
j (2,758,697) (2,448,332)
ting cash flows before changes in oparating assets and liabilities 8,626,209 14,293 545
IncroaseyDecrease in operating assets
Jue from Nepal Rastra Bank
> acement with bank and financial institutions s B e g s
3 “ar.t.rad_g_aasals __ P - = B
_can and advances to bank and financial msbtuwns i e L
—an and advances to customers B ) ___(23_,3]_{3_ 229} (21894 149)
Jiner assets ' B SO T . e (752,084) (17,719,848}
B ureaseﬁ[}ecmase} in operating liabilites S
e to bank and financial institutions
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank : AR
- -u\.sl_t_\._tgnl_cgstomars | R SN TR - T TTA 08
S g e i e e A
Sther Liabilities 7.930.928 3,220,937
"~ cash flow from operating activities before tax paid 15,847,806 6,847,286
_ncome taxes paid (1.853,83—4) {1,85¢,327)
‘.2t cash flow from operating activities 13,993,972 4,994,959
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES - = T
mvastment securities i - : Y
ints from sale of investment securites e M
ase of property and equipment — (11,000) 125,000
caip| from sale of property and equipment
rchase of intangible assets
Receipis from te sale of intangible assets
“yrahasé of investment properties {5,647 ,809)
<ceints from the sale of iInvestment properties
Interesl received
Dividand received 5 5
i cash used In investing activities (5,658,804) (128,000}
>ASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES T
~ Receipt from issue of debt securities E e N
‘<ep;},men! of debt sacunbas
R t E)j‘ll%gy_ﬂ of subordmated ligbilities
~ Repayment of subordmatad liabilities i
_%_cgs_ip_i from issue of shares e
Dividends pald
Interest paid
Other receipt/payment o
Net cash from financing activities -
‘st mJaasa {_dag:r_ggqg] in cash and cash equivalents 8,335,164 4 865 959
Cash and ca ash equwalents at Sawan 01, 2075 e 40,503,634 35 36,674
=t of exchangs fate fiuctuations on cash and cash  equivaients. held .
Cash and cash equivalents at Asar end 2076 49,138,798 40,803,634

5\
L

,;t}“
(¥

Panchanand Jha
Oy General Manager

(= -

Ajit K. Mighra Phul Mishra
Managing Director Chairperson

r'- '}f!”
/,'gr(g[( g

Shivahari P. Bhattarai

Jay Prakash Thakur
Director

Diractor

Arpana Kyman Mishra

Thrector

As per our repart of even date

CHAR TERED
,.Cﬁumnn

/ CA Sanjay K. Chaudhary
Principal
Sanjay Chaudhary &
Associates
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;t pany Limited
Statement of Change In Equity

Muiti Finance C

As on 31 Asar 2078 (July 16, 2019)

Attributable to squity holders of the Bank

Share
Pramium

Share
Capital

Gemarzl
Resarve

Othey
Reserve

Retained
Eaming

Revailuation
Ressrve

Exchange Falr
Equalisation mmu“ﬁé valua
Reserve Raserve

HNon-comrofling

Aol interast

Total

Halance at Shrawan 01, 2075 (17-Jul-2018} 41,473,600

8,485,830

23,872,950 18,973 467 841,354

83,627,271

93,627,271

Comprehensive Income for the FY 2075-76 (2018-19) :
Profit for the year

BATTAES

8,177,458

8,177,458

Other Comprahansive (ncoma, net of tax

Geinsilosses) from fvestmant in equity instruments measured at fair value

Gains/losses) on revaluation

Actuarial gein / (less) on ammjnzu benefil plan

Gain / {loss) on cash flow hedge

Exchange nmiu.m {losses) ?:m.:n #ﬂ:_._d:m_ku.d mawzﬂs_wammﬂa .Q 336; o_vo..upoa )

Total Comprehensive income for the year

- - - - 8177 ABS

Transfer 1o Reserves dunng the year

Transter from Reserves during the yeer

Transactions with Owners, directly recognized In Equity :
Shara issuad

m:naa@ueauas.ﬂau .

" Dividend 1o equily nolders

" Bonus sheresissued
Cash Dividend Paid

1,635,492

9,612,968 (11,330 ,235) 8775

@

@

Total Comtributions by and Déstri

1,635,492

(11,330,235} 81,775

5,612,968

Balance at Asar 31, 2076 (16-Ju-2019) 41,473,600

10,101,321

1,612,968 23,872,960 16,820,720 923,188

101,804,728

101,804,728
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Multipurpose Fimi‘_né:c Cump%ény Limited

Notes te the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Asar 2076 (July 16, 2019)

1. Reporting entity

1.1. Corporate information

“ultipurpose Finance Company Limited (hereinafter veferred 1o as “the Financial [nstitution™) is a public
sonted company domiciled in Nepal. It was incorpordated on 8% 2053-10-10 [AD 1997-01-23) under then
Srevailing Companies Act, 2021 (1964) of Nepal: {tis o class "CF iiicenscd finance institution regulated under
‘o Banks and Financial Institutions Act, 2073 (2017). It commonced operations as financial mstitution on
JU54-11-17 (1998-03-01) and has its registered head oltice in Rajbiraj, Saptari, Nepal.

1.7, Principal activities of the Financial Institution
Jrincipal activities of the Financial Institution comprise full-fledged financing services including financial
termedintion, trade finance services, remittance and other ancillary banking services to a diverse clicntele

sncompassing individuals and organizations.
2. Basis of preparation

2 1. Statement of compliance

‘e financial statements of the Financial Institution have been prepared in accordance with Nepa: Financial
coporting Standards 2013 (NFRS) developed by the Accounting Standards Board, Nepal {ASBN) and
Sronounced for application by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) on September 13, 2013,

Chese financial statements comply with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2006 and amendments

thereto and also provide appropriate disclosures required under regulations of the Securities Excienpe Board
o Nepal [SEBON).

etails of the significant accounting policies followed by the Fina heial Institution m the preparation of financial

]

ratements for the reporting period are given in Note 3.

2,11 Reporting pronouncements

Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB), the Banks and Financial tustitutions regulator of the country, has instructed banks
pd financial institutions to prepare their financial statements in accordance with NFRS effective from
financial year 2017-18. NRB circular to  this cffect  was issued under reference  number
I3aibi.nibi/Niti/Paripatra/KaKhaGa/10/074/75 dated November 30, 2017. NRB has alse implemented
standardized format of financial statements,

‘b Accounting Standards Board of Nepal has developed NERS 2013 by converging with frternational
Copancial Repoeting Standards 2012 (IFRS] as issued by the [nternational Accounting Standards Board
LASH]The Insutute o) Chartered Accountants ol Nepal hns pronounced implementation ol NIFRS.

Lecompanying financial statements for the year ended July 16, 2019 are the first set ol financial statements the
Vinancial Institution has prepared in accordance with MRS, Comparative figures for financial yow ended july
6, 2018 have been reclassified and resmeasured i accordance with NFRS. Financial Institution's opening
Squity position on the transition date of July 15 2017 hus-been re-measured based on NFRS
sures reported inaccordance with NFRS and those reported in

%

gsli

Statements

showing reconciliation between comparative fiy

=
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accordance with previous (AP ave presented in Note 5,10 'I)s’si'i_tism*e effect of transition from previous GAAP
o NERSs' 5

i'
2.2. Reporting period and approval of financial statements '

he sccompanying financial statements cover annual reporting period between July 17, 2018 and july 16, 2019
end date of July 16, 2019 {Lthe report date).
‘he year ended July 16, 2017 und opening

L reporting period) and the status is reported as al the year

Lese financial statements, inclusive of comparative lipures for
squity reconciliation at NFRS transition date of July 15, 2017, have been approved and authorized for issue by
e board of directors as per its decision dated 2076/08/25 and have recommended for its approval at the
sharcholders annual general meeting. i

2.2.1.  Responsibility for financial statements

[he board of directors of the Financial Institution is responsible for the preparation of financial statements of
ve Financial Institution which reflects a true and fair view of the financial position and periovmance of the
“inancial Institution. The board is of the view that the financial statements in its entirety have beer prepared
J3 conformity with the prevailing financial reporting standards and the Companies Act of Nepatl.

P board of directors acknowledges their responsibility for financial statements as set out in the ‘Statement of
Director's Responsibility’ and in the certification on the statement af financial position.
‘rese financial statements include the following components:
4 Statement of Financial Position [SolP| providing the mformation on the financial position of the
Financial Institution as at the end of the reported period;

4 Statement of Profit or Loss [SoPL] and a Statement of Qther Comprehensive tncome [SoCl| providing
the information on the financial performance of the Financial Institution for the reported period;

4 Statement of Changes in Equity [SoCE| reporting all changes in the shureholders' funds during the
reported period of the Financial [nstitulion;
a Statement of Cash Flows [SoCF] providing the infuratation to the users, on the ability of the Financial
[nstitution to generate cash and cash equivaients and utilization of those cash lows; and

- Motes to-the financial statements comprising significant accounting policies, other disciosures and
other explanatory information relevant to the study of financial statements.

23, Functional and presentation currency

el statements are presented in Nepalese Rupeces (NPR}, the functional currency of Financial bnstitution.
Assels and liabilities are presented in the order of Hguidity in the statement of financial position. Incomes and
Lipenses are classified by nature’ in the presentation ol statement ol profit orloss. Cash flows from operations
ace derived using the direct method in the presentation ol statement of cash flows.

2.4, Use of estimates, assumptions and judgments

reparation of financial statements in conformity with NFRS réquired the Financial Institution’s management
omake eritical judgments, estimates and assumptions such that could potentially have a material impact on
tie ceported financial figures. These affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of

sawets, Habilities, income and expenses.

Ui anongoing basis the management reviews these estimates and underlying assumptions Lo cnsure that they
continue to be relevant and reasonable. Revisions o accounting estimates are recognized prospectively.




The most significant areas of assumptions and estimation applied in the application of accounting policies that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are listed hereinafter
and their description follows:
- Fairvalue of financial instruments
- Classification of financial assets and financial lIabiirtles
- Impairment losses on financial assets
- Impairment losses on non-financial assets
.- Useful economic life of property and equipment
- Taxation and deferred tax
- Defined benefit obligations
- Provisions for liabilities, commitments and contingencies

241, Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities, for which there is no observable market prices, are
determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of statistical models. The Financial
Institution measures fair value using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of input used in
making measurements. The use of fair value hierarchy is described in Note 5.1.7.

24.2, Classification of financial assets and liabilities

Significant accounting policies of the Financial Institution provide scope for financial assets and financial
liabilities to be recognized under different accounting classifications. These are either measured at fair value
or at amortized cast and can be presented under any of the following accounting classifications based on
specific circumstances,

- Financial assets or financial liabilities subsequently measured at Amortized Cost; or
- Financial assets or financial liabilities designated asat Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL); or

- Financial assets or financial liabilities subsequently measured at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
(FVTPL); or

- Financial assets subsequently measured at Fair Value through Other Compichensive Income
(FVTOCI).

Presentation and / or measurement of the amounts recognized in financial staternents could be different for a
particular financial asset or financial liability under any two different accounting classifications. The Financial
Institution's management exercise judgment in the application of appropriate accounting policy to achieve
correct accounting classifications for its financial assets and financial liabilities. Accounting policy relating to
financial assets and financial liabilities is presented in Note 3.4.3 and the related explanatury information is
presented in Note 5.3.

2.43. lmrpairment losses on financial assets

Impairment loss on financial assets - loans and advances is determined at the higher of:
- Loanloss provision amount derived as prescribed in directive no. 02 of Nepal Rastra Bank; and
- Impairment loss amount determined as per Incurred Loss Model specified in para 63 of NAS 39,

Loan loss provision derived as prescribed under Directive No. 2/075 of Nepal Rastra Bank is considered for
making provision against loan and advances during the year.

There arises a need for the Financial Institution’s management to apply judgment and estimation in assessing
and determining the amount of impairment loss on financial assets measured at amaortized cost. Some of the
areas that require management judgment and estimation are listed herein below:
- selection of appropriate impairment assessment tool;
- defining individually significant assets;
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- designing impairment assessment qut-:stio_nrmi'."e;'

- estimating future recoverable cash ﬂoﬂvs"oigﬁnancial asset; and

- adjusting results of historical data analysis to incorporate the economic conditions and portfolio
factors that existed at the reporting date. :

bxercise of judgment is an inte gral part of the impairment assessment process and the Financial Institution
exercises its experienced judgment to adjust gbservable dali Tor a Financial [nstitution of linancial assets to
veflect current circumstances. The use of reasonable eSumates is an essential part of the preparation of
linancial statements and does not undermine their reliability,

The Financial Institution's policy In accounting for Impairment of financial assets is explained in Note 3.4.8,
244 Impairment losses on non-financial asscts

Al each reporting date, or more [requently il events ur changes in circumstances necessitates, the Financial
Institution assesses whether there are any indicators ol inpairment for o non-linancial assol, This requires the
estimation of the 'Value in Use' of such individual assets. Estimating the ‘Value in Use' requires the
dhagement to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the asset and also 1o yelect a suitable
discount rate to calculate the present value of the relevant cash flows. This valuation requires the management
tu make estimates abouyt expected future cash Mows and discount rates. Additional disclosure on this is stated
in Note 3.22,

245, Useful economic life of property and equipment

Fie Financial Institution reviews the residual values, usetul livesdand methods of depreciation ol property and
squpment at repular intervals, Judgment ol the management jy exercised in the estimation of these values,
rates, methods.

246,  Taxation and deferred tax

'he Financial Institution is subject to income tax under Income Tax Act 2002A.D. and amendments thereto,
and due to the potential differences that may exist between the Financial Institutions and the ncome Tax
Authorities with regard to the interpretation of complex tax provisions, management judgment is required 1o
determine the total provision for current tax and deferred Lt amounts.

Deferred Lax assets are recognized in respect of tax lusses to the extent that it is probable thal future taxable
profit will be available against which such losses cag be utilized. Judpment is required to determine the
atount of deferved tax assets that can be recoghized, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable
profits, together with future tax planning strategies. Additional disclosure on tax is stated in Note 3.10.
247 Defined benefit obligations
The Financial Institution recognizes following two types of employee liabilities as defined benefiy ubligations;
) Gratuity Liability
b Accumulated Leave Liability
Fhie cost of the defined benefit obligations is determued Usiig actudrial valuation from ap independent

actuary. The actuarial valuation invaolves making assumptions about discount rates, expected rates of return an
dassels, attrition rate, future salary increases, mortality rales and future pension increases, cte,

[ determining the appropriate discount rate, ma fagement considers the interest rates of MNepal government

bonds with maturities corresponding to the expected duration of the defined benelit obligation as may be

Wailable. The mortality rate is based on publicly avaitable mortality tables. Future salary increases and
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pension increases are based on expected future salary increase rates. The Financial Institution reviews
actuarial assumptions at each reporting date. Additional disclosure on this is stated in Note 3.15

248, Provisions for liabilities, commitments and contingencies

The Financial Institution receives legal claims in the r-a{ﬁ-r_m;.]i course ol business. Management has made
fudgments as to the likelihood of any claim succeeding in making provisions. The tme of concluding legal
claims is uncertain, as is the amount of possible outflow of economic benefits, Timing and cost uitimately
depends on the due processes in respective legal jurisdictivns,

All discernible risks are accounted for in determiining the amount of all known liabilitics, Contingent liabilitics
are possible c:b.Iigations whose existence will be ‘can firmed only by uncertain future events or present
obligations where the transfer of economic benelit is not probable or cannot be reliably imeasured, Contingent
liabilities are. not recognized in the statement of financial position but are disclosed unless they are remote.
Additional disclosure on this is stated in Note 52.6.

Information about significant areas of estimation and eritical judgments in applying accounting policies, other
than those stated above, and which have significant c¢ffects on the amounts recognized in the [nancial
statements are described in respective notes.

2.5. Changes in accounting policies

Annual financial statements for the period ended July 16, 2018 are the first set of NERS compliant annual
Lnaneral statements published by the Financial lnstitution, As required under NFRS 1« "First-tyme Adoption o
ANERST the Financial Institution has presented an explanation on how the transition from previous GAAP to
NERSs bas affected its reported financial posittor, financial performance and cash Hows in Note 511
Disclosure effect of transition from previous GAAPR to NFRSs”. The explanation includes:
reconciliations of equity reported in accordance with previous GAAPR and that reported inaccordance
with NFRS at;
o thedate of transition, i.e. July 15 2017 and
at the end of the latest period presented in the Financial Institation’s most recent annual
financial statements in accordance with provious GAAP, ic. July 16, 2018 [ihe cumparative
period);

a reconciliation of the Financial Institution's tolal comprehensive income reported in accordance with
NFRS to that reported in accordance wWith GAAP tur the comparative period ended July 16, 2018: and

- reconciliations of the Financial Institution's assets and liabilities reported in accordanco with previoug
UAAP and that reported in accordance wilth NI'RS at:
© thedate of transition, e July 16, 2017: and
¢ atthe end of the comparative period, ie. July 16, 2014,
2.6, MWew standards issued but not yet effective
Fhe ASBN has not issued a new NFRS since the current version off NFRS were issved in September 2013

However, the IASB has issued a number of new II'RS standards and interpretations, including amendments to
the existing IFRS, since the [FRS 2012 based ot which NFRS 2013 have been developed.

2.7.  New standards and interpretations not adopted

Fhe updates on IFRS subsequent to 2012 become applicable when the ASEN incorporates them within the
VERS. The Financial Institution has not adopted those standards,

-




2.8, Discounting

The Financial Institution calculates amortized cost of a financial asset or a {inancial liability using the effective
interest rate. The effective interest rate is the rate that. exact l_\,f discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts throughout the expected life of a financial assctora tm;m(.mt liability to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset or Hability. Iff expected life Lannot be deter m:nr.d reliably, then the contractual life is used.

In case where the Financial Institution assesses that tlié transaction amount of a financial asset or a financial
liability does not represent its fair value, the related future cash flows are discounted at prevailing interest rate
to determine the nutial fair value.

2.9, Going concern

The management has made an assessment of its ability to continue as a going concern and 15 satisfied that it
has the resources to continue in business for the laresceable future. Furthermore, the management is not
aware of any material uncertainties that may cast signiticant doubt upon the Financial Institution’s ability to
continue as a going concern, such as restrictions or plans to curtail operations. Therelore, the financial
statements of the Financial [nstitution continue to be prepared on a going concern basis,

2.10. Offsetting

in the Statement of Financial Position, [inancial assets and {inancial liabilities are netted off only when there is
a lepally enforceable right to offset the recopnized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or
Lo realize the assets and settle the liability simultancously. Income and cxpenses are not netted off in the
Statement of Profit or Loss unless required or permitted by an Accounting Standard or lnterpretation and as
specilically disclosed in the accounting policy of the Finangial Institution,

2.11. Materiality and aggregation ‘

in the financial statements materiality and aggregation is dealt with in compliance with Nepal Accounting
Standard — NAS 1 "Presentation ol Financial Statements” and within the scope of formats implemented by
Nepal Rastra Bank, Accordingly, each material class of similar items is presented separately and items that are
not stmilar in nature or function are also presented separately unless these are immaterial,

£.12. Rounding

The amounts in the financial statements are rounded. vff to the nearest Rupees, excepl where otherwise
indicated as permitted by NAS 1 - “Presentation ol Financial Statements”,

2.13. Comparative information

Accounting policies are consistently applied across all periods reported. The presentation and classification of
hinancial figures relating to previous period are regrouped or reclassified where relevant to facilitate
consistent presentation and better comparability. '

2.14. Events after the reporting date
Events after the veporting date are those events, favorable and unlavorable, thal occwr betwoen the reporting

date and the date when the [inancial statements are authorized lor ssue.

All material and important events that occurred alter the reporting date have been considered and appropriate
disclosures have been made in line with NAS 10 - “Bvents After the Reporting Peciod”. Explanatory
information on events after the reporting date is presented in Note 5.10.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies

The Financial Institution has applied the accounting puiic-ies"séé.ﬁ_out below consistently Lo all periods presented
i the accompanying linancial statements unless speaifically stated otherwise.
5 i

index ol significant accounting policies is praduced below foredsy reference,

Principal
Note
3 Slg,mﬁcanl Accmmtmgl’(}hmes :

Au.ounlm;, Policy Topic e i Additional Noie Page No:

Gk Basis ol measmem(.nl.

3.2 Ham 0! Lunwhdalwn

33 Cash and cash equlvaicm i 4.1

34 [ an dﬂd aduancea Lu cu.‘,wmms i A7

3.6 P1 oper! Ly and eqmpment 113

32 Investment securities g

3.8 Deferred tax assets 4,15

3.9 (Ln rent tax assels 1.9

310 Heposils ey

R I{L\«Lnut rccohmlmn 429 401

312 inferest L‘\]Jf.[’le 430

313 J or(.lpn currency tr dnS'u:UGns lemlrmma and baianees:

314 Share capital and reserves 426, had
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1.1.  Basis of Mcasurement
sancial Statements of the Financial Insututlon hcwv beLn prepar cd on historical cost convention, vxcept fo
wiollowing: bt 3

- Investment Property (land and bulldmgJ acquired ;}s non-banking assets) are measured at fair value
under NAS 40 'Investment I’: operty'.

- Liabilities for employee defined benefit Obil}:dlmﬂs and i amht:(.s for long service leave are measured
at fair value under NAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits'.

3.2, Basis of conselidation
ke Pinancial stitution's financial statements comprise .sl.and alone financial statements only it has no
-Lhsidiary companies thal require wnsollddtlon. ‘ Ei-

o Busmess combination : None .

. Mon-controlling interest (NCI) : None

¢ Subsidiaries : None

¢, Lossof contral : None

¢.  Special Purpose Entity (SPLE) : None

I, “I'ransaction climination on conselidation : None

:.4. Cashand cash equivalent

.sh and cash equivalent comprise of the total amount of cush-in-hand, balances with other bauk and financial
sslitutions, money at call and short notice, and highly liquid financial assels with original maturitivs of three
onths or less from the acquisition date that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in thewr fair value,

nd are used by the licensed institution in the managenicut of its short term commitments. Restricted deposits
¢ ot included in cash and cash equivalents, These are measured at amortized cost and presented as a line

wom on the face of Statement of Financial Position {Sol'l?).

i4. Pinancial assets and financial liabilities
Jrancial assets refer to assets that arise from contractual agreements on future cash flows or from owning
ity anstraments of another entity. Since financial assets derive their value from a contractual claim, these
¢ uon-physical in form and are usually regarded as being more liquid than other tangible asscts. Comnion
Lmples of financial assets are cash, cash equivalents, bank balances, placements, investmoents o debt and

oy instruments, derivative assets and toans and advinees.

nancial liabilities are obligations that arise from contractual agreements and that require seltlement by way
s delivering cash or another financial asset. Settiement could also require exchanging other financial assets or
“aancial liabitities under potentially unfavorable conditions. Settlement may also be made by issuing own
S uity instruments, Common examples of financial liabilities are due to banks, derivative liabilities, deposit
coounts, money market borrowings and debt capital instruments.

ie vontractual agreements, generally referved to as financial instruments, are characterized by the existence
-~ counterparties and the contract terms give rise to o financial asset to one counterparty and a corresponding
s nancial Hability or cquity instrument to the other counterparty.

[he Financial Institution has applied NFRS 9 - “Financial lnstruments” in the classification and measurement
f its financial instruments. Para 5.2.2 of NFRS 9. prescribes the application af impalrment requirements in
caragraphs 58-65 and AGB4-AGY93 of NAS 39 to financial assets measu red at amortized cost. Accerdingly, the

Syancial Institution has applied Para 63 of IAS 39 and measured impairment loss on linancial assets o neasured

s model

Camoruzed costiollowing thr.u incurred |
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1414, Date of recognition of financial instruments

Ul financial assets and linancial liabilities are initially Lrgulg-nI?.L\éd._ln_ the Statement of Financial Position when
“he entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions ol the in%;;rumcm.

442 Initial recognition and measurement of financial instruments

AUl financial assets and financial labilities are initially measurediat fair value plus or minus, in the case of a
financial asset or financial liabilit*y' not at fair value Uhrough prolit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
Lributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial ussel on ['ir\\;-_i:hc['al liability. :

141 Classification and subsequent measurement of finuncial assels
Cencial assets are classified based on how the assel is measured subsequent Lo its initial recognition as per
SERS Y - "Financial Instrument”. Accordingly, at the time of intual recognition, financial assets are clugsilied as:

H ¥
financial assets subsequently measured at amortized cost, and
_ financial assets subsequently measured at fair value.
“lassification and subsequent measurement of financial assets are arrived at on the basis of both the following
criteria
the entity's business model for manaping the financial assets, and

 the contractual cash flow characteristics ol the financial asset.
Details on different classes of financial assets recognized on the financial statements are presented in Note 5.3

344, Classification and subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
“inancial liabilities are classified based on how the fiability is measured subsequent to ity initial recognition as
per NERS 9 - “Financial Instrument”. Accordingly, 4t the vime of initial recognition, financial Habilities are
classified as:

subsequently measured at FVTPL, or

subscquently measured at amortized cost

Details on different classes of financial liabilities recopnized on the {inancial statements @rc presented in Note

£ i

345, Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

Roclassification of financial assets and liabilities are at the clection of management and determined on an
strument by instrument basis. Reclassification of financial assets is done if and only if the business model
abiective for the financial asset changes so its previous model assessment would no longer apply.

NERS 9 does not permit reclassification in the following cases:

for equity investments measured at FVTOCE and

where the fan value option has been exercised inany crcumstance for a linancial agset or a tinancial
liability,

4.4.6. De-recognilion of financial assets and financial habilities

4 4.6.1. De-recognition of financial assets
I he Finaneial Institution derecognizes a financial assct, or where applicable 4 part of financial usset or part ofa
Csancial Institution of similar financial assets, when:

~ the contractual rights to the cash flows from the lpancial assel expire; or
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the Financial institution transfers the vights te receive the contractual cash flows n o transaction in

which substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asscet are transiorred: or

- the Financial Institution has assumed antobligalion to pay the received cash flows 1 full without
material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement and:

o elther the Financial [nstitution has translérred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset; or
the Financial Institution has neither tansierred nor retained substantially ail the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has ransferred control of the agset.

On de-recognition ol a financial asset, the difference [wtwetﬁn the carrying amount of the asset {or the carrying
amount allocated to the portion of the asset derccognized) 'and the sum ol the consideration received
{including afy hew asset obtained less any new liability 'ziSSLimed] and any cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognized in other comprehensive income is recognized in the statement of profit or foss. Any interest in
transferred financial assets that qualify for de-recognition that is created or retained by the Financial
Institution is recognized as a separate asset or liability,

Where there s the Financlal Institution's continuing mvolvement that takes the form of puarantecing the
transterred asset, the extent of the continuing involvement s measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of cons:deration received by the Financial ftnstitution and which
itcould be required Lo repay.

3.4.6.2. De-recognition of financial liabilities

The Financial Institution derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled or expired. Where an existing financial liability is veplaced by another from the same lender on
substuntially different terms or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
o moditication is treated ag de-recognition of the origimal Jiélhifi[}/ and the recognition of a new Lability.

fhe difference between the carrying value of the ongmal financial liability and the consideration paid is
recognized in the statement of profit or loss as a disposal peitn or loss,

347, Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities ;

‘Fair Value'is the price that would be received on sell of an asset or paid for transfer of a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value measurement s based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the assel or Lansler the lability takes place either

i the principal market for the asset or liabihiy; or
in the absence of principal market, in the most advantageous markel lor the asset or Hability,
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible Lo the Financial Institation,

The tair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that markel participants act in their economic best Interests.

A far value measurement takes into account a market participant's ability 1o gencrate cconemic benelits by
using the assetin its highest and best use or by selling it Lo another market participant that would use the asset
i1ty highest and best use.

tair Value ol non-financial assets such as land and building are derived based on reports aof independent
professional property valuators.

Explanatory information on fair value measurement of assels and liabilities, along with the fair value hicrarchy
e i o el . i T e Py - - o
adopted by the Financial Institutipn in determining the fair value of financiat assets, is provided in Note 5.1.7,




3.8, lmpairment of financial assets

I'tie Financial Institution, at the end of each repor me ]3u iod, dssesses whether there is any objective evidence
that a financial asset is impaired. A financial asset is rJ'I'l[]dIlf,‘d and impairment losses are incurred if, and only
i, there is objective evidence of impairmentas a result ol onelor more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and tbat_lbss'(‘ucnll{qi‘ events) has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or Financial Institution of fi |'1e't1{cliz':l,asscts that can be reliably estimated,

caused the impairment. Rather the combined

[l may not be possible to identify a single, diserete cvent tl
ctivet of several events may have caused the impairment; Objective evidence of impairment includes

ubservable data such as following:
- significanit financial difficulty of the issuer or ubligor;
- abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency i interest or principal payments:
it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bantkruptey or other financial reorganization;

where observable data indicate that there is @ measurable decrease in the estimated future cash Hows
fram a Bank of [inancial assets since the intial recognition of those assets, although the decrease
cannot yel be identified with the individual financial agsets in the Financial Institubon, including
adverse changes in repayment patterns or ecenomic conditions that correlate with defaulis.

Statistical methods are used to determine impairment losses on a collective basis for homogenous portfolio ul

oan assets, The Financial Institution applies “net flow rate” methodology to calculate historical loss e,\perl(,m.l,

on a collective portfolio basis. Under this, loans are grouped into ranges according to the number of days in

irrears and statistical analysis is used to estimateé the likelihood that loans in each range will progress through

bovarious stages of delinguency and ultimately turn into uncollectible. The loss rates are regularly reviewed
castactual loss experience.

9. Loant employees at market interest rate

e Financal [nstitutions generally provides loans woits cmiployees at markel interest vate. Uhis asset s
sifurcated and recognized as two different elementy viz, o prepaid employee benelit and a loan asset. Initially
tur value of @ loan to an employee is estimated by discounting the future loan repayments using o markel rate
b+ interest, The initial difference between the transaction price of the loan and its fair value Iy recognized as
cuployee benefit. The remaining part of the loan receivable is accounted for as a financial assed subsequently
neasured at amortized cost ! '

s prepaid employee benpefit element is accounted for as short-term employee penefil under NAS 19 -
rmployee Benefits”, The balance in prepaid employce benelitis amortized over the full term of the Joan with
sresponding expense recognition determined at the difivrence between:

the interest income for the period applying elicctive interest rate on the fair value of the toan; and
- the interest payable by the employee,
I'ne Fiancial [nstitution has a policy of providing loans to its employees at market interest rate.

4.5, Trading assets
auling assets are those assets that are acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near term, or held
< part of a portfolio that is managed together tor shurt term profit. 1t includes non-derivative financial assets

sld primarily

wuch ds government bonds, NRB bonds, domestic corporate bonds, treasury bills, equities, cle |
Strachong purpose, Ha wrading assetis a debtinstrament (s clgl;juci to the same accounting policy applicd to
fancial assets measured at amortized cost 1L a trading assel 15 an equity instruwment, it 1s subject to the same

accounting policy applied to financial assets meagored at FVITPL.
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thamer intended by management.

L]
3.6. Derivative assets and derivative liabilities

None

1.7. Property and equipment

Property and equipment are tangible items that are hvl;éﬂ'ui‘ and used in the pravision of survices, lor rental 1o
others, or for administrative purposes, and are expecidd to be used lfor more than e year period. The
Financtal lustitution applies NAS 16 - "Property: Plant and Equipment” in the accounting of property and

equipment.,

Additional information on property and e¢quipment wilhia reconciliation of carrying amounts, accumulated
amortization at the beginning and at the end of the periods is presented in Note 4,13,

471 Basis of recopnition
Praperty and equipment are recognized il itis probable that fulure economic benelits associuted with the assel
will flow to the Financial Institution and the cost of the asset can be reliably measured.

372, Basis ol measurement

An item of property and equipment that qualifies for recognilion as an asset is initially measured at its cost,
Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable (o the acquisition of the asset and cligible subsequent
costs. Subsequent expenditure s capitalized only when ity probable that the future economic benefits of the
expenditure will flow to the Financial Institution. Ongoing repairs and Mmaintenance are expensed as incurred.

The cost of self-constructed assets ncludes the cost of materials and direct labor, any other costs directly
atributable to bringing the asset to a working condition'lor its intended use and the costs of dismantling and
remaving the items and restoring the site on which they are located and capitalized borrowing costs.
Purchased software which is integral to the functionality of the related cquipment is canitalized ag part of
Computer Equipment,

3.7.3. Cost model

The Financial Institution applies the cost model 1o a4l property and equipment and records thage al cost ol
purchase together with any incidental expenses thercon loss accumulated depreciation and 4 ny accumilated
impairment losses. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the equipment when that cost is incurred,
Lthe recognition eriteria are met,

374 Revaluation model _
The Finandial tnstitution doesn't apply revaluation model any class of property and equipment.

3.7.5.  De-recognition

The carrying amount of an item ol property and equipment s derecognized upon dispusit o when no future
eeonomic benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or luss arising on de-recognition of an sset {caleulated
as the difference between the nat disposal procecds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognized in the
prolitorloss in the year the asset is derecognized.

When replacement costs are recognized in the carrving amount of an item ol property and cquipment, the
remaining carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized,

3.7.6.  Capital work-in-progress

These are expenses of a capital nature direcily incurred m the construction ol buildings and system
development, awaiting capitalization, These are stated in the Statement of Financial Position at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses, Capital work-in-progress is transferred to the relevant asser when it is
available for use, f.e. when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the




3.7.7. Depreciation :
Che Financial fnstitution provides depreciation from the date the assets are available for use up o the date of
tmposal, The assets are depreciated on a straight line bei,-sis over the periods appropriate to the estimated
cseful hves, based on the pattern in which the asset’s ['_u[ur'fi ecotomic benefils are expected to be consumed by
the Financial Institution other than disclosed separately. ; !

Estimated Uselul I,iié: et

Up to 50 years R ‘

| (lass of Fixed Assets

Freehold Building

i
=

Motor Vehicles Up to 10 years

Up to 10 years
Upto 10 years
Office Eguipment Upto 10 years

Plant and Machinery

e

Farniture & Fixture

Jepreciavion of an assel ceases at the earlier of the date that the asset s classified as held for sale ¢r the date
ot the asset is de-recopnized. Depreciation dovs not cease when the assets become idle or s setived from
sctve use unless the asset is fully depreciated. Depreciation methods, useful lives and residuat values are
cassessed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.

3.7.8.  Changes in estimates
che assets residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed, and adjusted i appropriate,
each fnancial year end.

3.8, Goodwill and Intangible assets

8.1, Goodwill

wodwill that arises on the acquisition of Subsidiarics is initially measured at cost, being the cecess of the
spgregate of the consideration transferred and the amount recognized for non-controlling interests, and any
revious interest held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and Habilities assumed.

Esequent to hmtiad recognition, goodwill is measurcd b cost less accumulated impairment losses For the
arpuse of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
Svocated woeach of the bank’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination,
respective of whether ather assets or liabilities of the acguirec sureassigned Lo those units,
iU the reporting date, the Bank does not have intapgible asset in the form of goodwill, arising on business
—umbiation. .

282 Imangible assets
stangible assets are identifiable non-monetary assel without physical substance, which are hold {for and used
the proviston ol services, for rental to others or for administrative purposes. The Bank applies NAS 38 -
cangible Assets” inaccounting for its intangible asseis.
w Banlo recognizes an mtangible asset when:
the cost of the asset can be measured reliably;
- thereis control over the asset as a result of past events (for example, purchase or self-creation); and

- future economic benefits (inflows of cash or other assets) are expected from the asset,




-

Intangibles can be acquired by separate purchase; as part of a business combination; by a goverament grant;
by exchange of assets; or by self-creation (internal jéunc.‘r'.illi-on_}é An intangible asset appearing in the Bank's
buoks is computer software which is already written off from the books.

3,83, Computer software ) e
suftward acquired by the Financial Institution is nieasured aticost less accumulated amortization and any

accumulated impairment losses.

Additional information on intangible assets wilh a recongiliation of carrying amounts, accumulated
smortization at the beginning and at the end of the periodsis preésented in Note 4.5,

184, dmangible assets with indefinite useful lives :

cangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized but are tested for impairment annually either
ndividuatly or at the Cash Generating Unit level as appropriate, when circumstances indicate that the carrying
culue is impaired. The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine
whether the ‘indefinite life assessment’ continues o remain valid, If not, the change in the useful life
Lssessment from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

At the reporting date the Financial Institution does not have intangible assets with indefinite useful lives,

3.8.5.  De-recognition of intangible assets

cangible assets are de-recognized on disposal or when future cconomic benefits are no more cxpected from
Jooir use. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the dilference
Jotween the net disposal proceed and the carrying amount of thie asset. Such a gain or loss is recognized in the

soafit or foss.

14.6.  Amortzation and impairment of intangible assets

the useful lives ol intangible assets are assessed as vither finite ar infinite. Except for goodweill othermtangible

sets with finite lives are amortized on a straight line basis i the statement of profit or loss [rom the date

. hen We asset is available for use, over the best estimate of the usclul economic life based on a pattern in

~hieh the asset's economic benefits are consumed by the Financial Institution. Amortization methods, useful
vis, residual values are reviewed al each linancial year end and adjusted if apprepriate. The Financial

Cstitution assumes that there is no residual value lor its intangible assets.

¢ Class ol Intangible Assets

[ Estimated Useiul Lile

1T Soltware % Up Lo 5 years

bl i,

atangible assets are assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible assel may be

impaired. Expenditure on an intangible item that was initially recognized as an expense by the Financial
Lsbitution in previous annual financial statements or interin [i nancial statements are nol recopnized as part
“he cost of an intangible asset at a later date. Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values ave
Cvewed at cach reporting date and adjusted it appropriate, Goodwill and intangible assets with infinite useful
oy sueh as license are not amortized, but are assessed [or impairment ann ually: The assessment of inlinite

Cres reviewed annually to determine whether the infinie hie continues to be supportable

3.4, Investment property '

[nvestment properties are land or building or both ather than those classified as property and equipment

Lader NAS 16 - "Property, Plant and Equipment”; and assets classified as non-current assets held for sale

Cader NFRS 5 - “Non-Current Assets Held for Sale & Discontinued Operations”. The Financial [nstitution has
cogmized as investment property all land or land and mlj];c[ing acquired as noa-banking assets through

ceciusure by the Financial Institutian,
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Non-banking assets (only land and building) are initally recognized at cost Subsequent 1o initial recognition
the Financial Institution has chosen to apply the cost model dllowed by NAS 40 = “Investment Property” and
stbee s not intended for owner-occupied use, a depreciation charge is not raised.

3.10. Income Tax : BN

Tax expense is the aggregate amount included in the Lir—:L-EirrnEn;fLi_orx of profit or loss for the period in respect of
current and deferred taxes. The Financial Institution applies NAS 12 - “Income Taxes” for the accounting of
ncome Tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss, except to the extent it velates
ta items recognized directly in equity or directly in other comprehensive income. Tax expense refating to items
recognized directly in other comprehensive income i i({UngDf in the Statement of Other Comprehensive
fneome,

310,31, CurredfTax

Lurrent tax comprises the amount of income taxes payable (or recoverable) in respect of the taxable profit (or
tax loss) for the reporting period, and any amount adjusted Lo the tax payable (or receivable) in respect of
previous years, It is measured using tax rates enacted, or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Ihe Financial Institution has determined tax provision for the reported period based on its accounting profit
fur that peried, and incorporating the eflects ol adjustments for taxation purpose as required under the
Lrcome Tax Act 2002 A (2058 B.S) and amendiments thereto, using o corporate tax rate of 30,0004,

e Faancial Institution recognizes a current Lax Liability to the extent that the current tax expense for current
aud prior periods remain unpaid. Conversely, o current lax asset is recognized if the tax paid n respect of
current and prior periods exceed the amount payable for those periods. Explunatory information on current
tax caleulation is stated in Note 4.41.

3.10.2. Deferred Tax
Deferred tax is recognized at the reporting date in respect of temporary differences betwoon:
- the carrying amounts of assets and liahilities (or (inancial reporting purposcs; and

the amounts used for taxation purposes (Le. tax base).

Selerred tax s not recognized for:

- temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities In a transaction that is nol a
business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss;

- lemporary differences related to investments m subsidiaries to the extent that it is probable that they
will not reverse in the foreseeable future: and

taxable temporary differences arising on the witial recopaition of guodwill.

Jeterred wax assets are recognized for all deductible wmporary ditferences, carried forward unused tax credits
wd carried forward unused tax losses (if any), to the extent that it is probablé that future taxable profits will
v available against which they can be used. Deferred Lax Habilities are the amounts of income tases payable in
fature periods in respect of taxable temporary differences,

“he carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at cach reporting date and reduced Lo the extent that il
- 1o longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized. Unr ecognized deferred tux assels are
wassessed at each reporting date and recognized to the exlent that it has become probable that fulure taxable
culits will be available against which they can be used.

clerved tax assets and labilities are measured at the Lax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary
fferences when they will be revepsed, using tax rates cnacted, or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.
.'




Delerred tax income or expense relating to items :*U_L_‘_o_gmfz.cti directly in equity is recegnized in Other
Lomprehensive Income. B b

Deferred Lax assets and deferred tax Habilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set olf current
Ly assels against current tax jabilities and the delerred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
twation authority. Explanatory information on deferved tax ca lculation is stated in Note 4.15.

5.11. Deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated ll thilities

3.11.1. Deposits from customers and BFls v |

The Financial Institution presents deposit accounts held by customers and those held by BELs in the Financial

[ustitution under respective line items in the face of the cunsolidated statement of financial position. These arc
——

Cassified as financial liabilities measured atamortized cost.

3112, Deblsecurities issued

Cie Fmancial [nstitution presents debt securities, debenture issued by the Financial Institution under this line
Lo Phese sre classified as financial liabilities measured at '..ll'!!.;}l'l'i']{[-.‘d cosl. The Financial [nstitution does not
cave any debt secarities issued at the reporting date.

3.11.3. Subordinated Habilities

I'nese comprise of liabilities subordinated, al the cvent ol winding up, to the claims of depositars, debt
securities issued and other creditors. ftems eligible lor presentation under this line item include redeemable
preference share, subordinated notes issued, borrowings ele, These are subject to the same accounting policies

anplied to financial liabilities measured at amortized cost The Financial Institution does not have any
cubordinated liabilities at the reporting date.

3.12. Provisions
e Financial Institution applies NAS 37 - “Provisions, Contingent Liabilitics & Contingent Assets” in the
Lecounting of provisions. i St

3.12.1. Provisions for onerous contracts

A provision for onerous contracts is recognized whoen the cxpected benefits to be derived by the Finaneial

petitution fram @ contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations unde: the contract.

o provision is measured as the present value of the lower of the expeeted cast of terminating the contract

L the expected net cost of continuing with the contract, 'The Financial Institution does nol have any onerous
{ Colitracts at the reporting date.

3.12.2. CGther provisions
_ A provision is recopnized if, as a result of a past event, the Financial Institution has o present legal or
unstructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an vutflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the oblipation. '

e amount of Provisions are determined by discounting the expected [uture cash outilows ol a pre-tax rate

st reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the lability. The
Lvwnding of the discount is recognized as interest expenscein profit or loss. |

suivre o provision s established, the Financial fstittion recognizes any impairment loss on the assels
Lssoriated with that contract, The expense relating L.y provision 1s presented in the profit or loss net ol any

cetmbursement




3.13. Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Financial
Institution and the revenue can be measured reliably. The Financial Institution applies NAS 18 - "Revenue” in
the accounting of revenue, unless otherwise stated.

3.13.1. Interestincome

Interest income are recognized in profit or loss using the effective interest rate (EIR) method for all financial
assets measured at amortized cost. Interest income is earned on bank balances, investments in money market
and capital market instruments, loans and advances, etc.

EIR method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset and of allocating the interest
mcome over the relevant period. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or cash
payments through the expected life of the financial asset to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

When calculating EIR the Financial Institution estimates future cash flows considering all contractual terms of

the financial asset, but not future credit losses. The Financial Institution has excluded from EIR calculation the
upfront management fees received at the origination of long tenor loans and advances to customers,

Details of interest income:

2076 Asar31 2075 Asar 32
Cash received during the year 42,276,946 35,146,532
Closing Accrued Income 2,979,030 6,338,628 ‘
Opening Accrued Income (6338628 (3.558.192]
Income recognized during the year  38.917.348 37.926.968

Explanatory information on interest income is stated in Note 4.29.

3.13.2. Feesand commission income

The -Financial Institution earns fee and commission income on providing a diverse range of services to its
customers. Such income earned on services including account maintenance, remittance transactions, agency
commissions, e-commerce transactions, letter of credits, bank guarantees, loan management, etc. are
recognized as the related services are performed. Fee and commission earned for the provision of services
over a period of time are accrued over that period. nxplanatory information on net fees and commission
income is stazed in Note 4.31.

3.13.3, Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive income is established, which is the ex-dividend date
for quoted equity instruments and unit investments. In line with the requirements of the Income Tax Act 2002,
dividends received from domestic companies are recognized as final withholding income, while those received
in respect of unit investments in mutual funds and equity interest in foreign companies arc recognized in gross
amounts and respective withholding taxes are recognized as tax receivables,

.

3.13.4, Nettrading income

Trading income comprises of gains or losses relating to financial assets and liabilities held in the Financial
Institution’s trading books. The Financial Institution presents all accrued interest, dividend, unrealized fair
value changes and disposal gains or losses in respect of trading assets and liabilities under this head.
Explanatory information on net trading income {s stated in Note 4 .33,

3.13,5. Netincome from other financial instrument at fair value through Profit or Loss
None '

3.14, Interest expense
Interest expense is recognized in profit or loss using the effective interest rate (EIR) method for all financial
liabilities measured at amortized cost Interest expénse is borne on inter-bank borrowings, deposit from
customers, debenture issued, refinance borrowing, etc. Explanatory information on interest expense is stated
in Note 4.30.

%r\




3 15, Employec Benefits

‘npioyee benefits are all forms of consideration’given by an entity in exchange for service rendered by
mployees. The Financial Institution’s remuneration dei\dgL Jmludcs both short term and long tarm beneiits

and comprise of items such as salary, :ﬂlowanwa paud anvu cumulated leave, gratuity, provident fund and

annual statutory bonus.

‘The Financial Institution applies NAS 19 - “Lmployee Benelits” in accounting ol all employce benefits and
cecoghizes the followings in its financial statements:

- aliability when an employee has pr owdcd service in m\c]wnpc for employce benelits to be paid in the
Tuture; and : e

an explnse when the Financial Institution consames the economic benefi arising [rom service
arovided by an employee in exchange for employvee benefils.

Faplapatory information on personnel expense is stated in Note 4.36.

3.15.1. Shortterm employee benefits :
inese are employee benefits which fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which
tie emplovees render the related service. "lhss mgludes salary, allowances, medical insurance, stututory bonus

Cemployees, ete. These are measured on an undiscounted basis and are charped to profit or loss in the period
s svrvices are received. Prepaid benefits on loans advanced to employees at below-market interest rate are
smwrtized over the Tull period of the loan, Financial Instiution has not advanced any loan to employees at
seiow market interest rate,

315.2. Defined contribution plan {DCP)

JUPs are post-employment benefit plans under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a stparate entity
+lund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not held

sutlicient assets to pay alt employee benefits refating Lo emplayee service in the current and prior periods. The
“rancial Institution has one DCP in the form of 'Provident Fund'.

~aitributions by the Financial Institution to a DCP in proporlion to the services rendered by its cmployeds are
coghived as tncurred in profit or loss in the same period. I there stands any pd_\,’db!(, 16 Lthe DEP at the
cpurting date, a corresponding Hability (s also recopnized in the Sokp.

2153, Defined benetit plans (DBP)
lelined benefit plan is a post-employment benelit plan other than a defined contribution plan. Uhe Financial
sstitution has one DBP in the form of ‘Gratuity’.

4.15.3. 1. Description of DBP - Gratuity
cactaariat valuation is not carried out considering the small mp(nwaLmn structure and henee actuarial gains
1 losses are not recoghized. Instead the gratuity hability is fully funded to the corresponding DBP to the
swent of pratuity entitlement carned by the employees (1 the same period, Employer's concribution to DEP is
coognized as gratuily expense in profit or loss,

2.154,  Other long term employee benefits

'he Financial Institution has recognized accumulated les e liability, in respect of acerued leave which is
sapected Lo be utilized by employees in periods beyond one year from the reporting date, as other long term
-miptoyee benefits.
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4155, Terminal benefits g

ermination benefits are expensed at the earlier of when the Financial [nstitution can no longer withdraw the
dter ol those benefits and when the Financial i:nsti'u_l-_lio n recognizes costs for a restructuring. i benefits are
wioexpected o be wholly settled within 12 1_'r1'-01'1tl'1.~‘§_- of the reporting dale, then they are discounted. The
“mancial Institution does not have any terminal benefit plan for the reporting period.

3.16. Leases hi

wone

4.17. Foreign Currency translation L

VARIC

i 18, Financial guarantee and loan commitment

RERTE

3.19. Share capital and reserves

‘rdinary shares in the Financial Institution are recognived at the amount paid per ordinary share. Financial
stlution’s shares are listed at Nepal Stock Exchange Lud. The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to onoe
e per share at general meetings of the Financial lnstitution and are entitled to receive the annual dividend
wments, The Financial Institution does not have any other form of share ca pital {preference shares,
svertible instruments, share based payments, ote.) apart rom the erdinary shures,

“here are a number of statutory and non-statutory reserve headings maintained by the Financial [nstitution in
cder to comply with regulatory framework and other operational requirements. The various reserve headings
~eexplained hereinafter:

19.1. General reserve

e s statutory reserve and s a compliance requirement of NRB directive no. /75 and stipulations of

L The Financial Institution is required w appripriate o onimum 20% ol current year's net profit imto

oheading cach year until it becomes double of paid up capital and then after o mintmum 10% ol profit cach
can This reserve s not available for distribution Lo shareholders i any form and requires specitic approval of
e central bank for any transfers from this heading. The Financial Institution has consistently appropriated
e required amount from each year's profit into this heading, There is no such statutory requircient for the
shsidiary,

- 192, Exchange equalization reserve.

sere s ne such statutory requirement for the Financial lnstitution.

=133, Fair value reserve

(s ds A non-statutory reserve and is a requirement in the application of accounting policy for financial assets,
RS Y requires that cumulative net change in the tuic value of financial assets measured a1 FVTOCT iy
cugnized under fair value reserve heading until the fair valued asset is de-recognized. Any realized fair value
-manges upon disposal ol the re-valued asset is reclassilied iron this reserve heading Lo retained carnings.

S 194 Asselrevaluation reserve

liis Is @ non-statutory reserve and is a requircment o the apphcation of accounting policy for non-tinancial

el sueh as property, equipment, investment proj teand intangible assets that are measured following a
vatuation model. Revaluation reserves often serve as # cushion dgainst unexpected losses but may not be

Ay available o absorb unexpected losses due to the subsequent deterioration in market values and tax

sisequences of revaluation, The Flhancial Instutulion does not have any amount to present under asset

-valuation reserve.




3.19.5. Special reserve

This is a statutory reserve and is a compliance requirement of NRB Circular 12/072/73. The Financial
Institution is required to appropriate an amountequivalent to 100% of capitalized portion of interest income
on borrowing accounts where credit facility was rescheduled or restructured, following the after effects of the
great earthquake that struck the nation in April 2015.Fund in this account can be reclassified to retained
earnings upon full and final repayment of the credit facility.

3.19.6. Corporate sot;lahesponswbxhty fund
This is a statutory reserve and is a compliance requxrement of NRB Circular 11/073/74. The Financial

[nstitution is required to appropriate an amount equivalent to 1% of net profit into this fund annually. The
fund is created towards funding the Financial lnscitﬁtion"s;corporate social responsibility. expenditure during
the subsequent year. Balance in this fund is directly reclassified to retained earnings in the subsequent year to
the extent of payments made under corporate social responsibility activities. The financial Institution has not
done any activities in respect of corporate social responsibility during the year. Hence amount of reserve is
accumulated at the end of this year.

3.19.7. Investiment adjustment reserve

This is a statutory reserve heading and is a compliance requirement of NRB directive no.4/075 and 8/075. The
Financial Institution is required to maintain balance in this reserve heading which is calculated at fixed
percentages of the cost of equity investments that are not held for trading. Changes in this reserve requirement
are reclassified to retained earnings.

3.19.8. Actuarial gain / loss reserve

This is a non-statutory reserve and is a requirement in the applicadon of accounting policy for employee
benefits, NAS 19 requires that actuarial gain or loss resuitant of the change in actuarial assumptions used to
value defined benefit obligations be presented under this reserve heading. Any change in this reserve heading
is recognized through other comprehensive income and is not an appropriation of net profi. '

3.19.9. Personnel Training Reserve

The financial institution is required to incur minimum 3% of total personnel cost for personnel training under
Point No. 6 of NRB Directive No. 6/075. It has neither incurred any personnel training cost nor created any
personnel training reserve during the year.

3.20. Earnings per share including diluted

The Financial Institution calculates basic and diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares as
required under Nepal Accounting Standards - NAS 33 on "Earnings Per Share”. Basic EPS is calculated by
dividing the profit or loss that is attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Financial [nstitution by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the reported period. Diluted EPS is calculated
by adjusting the profit or loss that is attributable to the ordinary shareholders of the Financial Institution and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potental
ordinary shares, such as share options granted to employees and hybrid capital instruments,

The Financial Institution does not hold any dilutive potehtiai ordinary shares, and as such the Basic EPS is also
the Diluted EPS of the Financial Institution.

3.21. Segmentreporting

The Financial Institution discloses information on operanng segments to enable users of financial statements
to evaluate the nature and financial effects of the Financial Institution's business activities and that of the
economic environment in which the Financial Institution operates, Detail information on the Financial
Institution’s operating segment is presented in Note 5.4.

3.22, Impairment of Non-Financial Assets
The Financial Institution reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other than investment
properties and deferred tax assets) to determine whether there exists any indication of impairment Where
any indication of impairment exists, the Financial Institution makes an estimation of the s
amoupL | pr ,
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fhe recoverable amount’ of an asset is the greater of its Value in Use” and its ‘Fair Value' less costs to sell. In

determining the 'Value in use’, future cash flow estimates dre discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessiments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
assel. In determining ‘Fair Value' less cost to sell, anappropriate valuation model is used,

An impairment loss is recognized in the profit or losy if thfé-caljrying amount of an asset exceeds the estimated
secoverable amount from that asset. The imfﬁ_é[.nﬁent"_l'bs i E:e'{:t)gni::ed through expense charge in profit or
toss with @ corresponding write down in the carrying valte of the asset. Conversely, subscouent reversal of
Jipairment charge 1s also recognized when a Suhsén:fuum assessment of the assel’s recoverable amount results
fa reduction y previously recognized impairment loss lor Llwlt" assel,

3.23. Statement of cash flows

the Financial Institution has reported its cash flow statement applying the "‘Direct Method' in accordance with
NAS 07 - "Statement of Cash Flows". Application of the direct method in presenting cash flow statement
discloses major classes of gross cash receipts and gross cash payments, thereby provides information which
midy be useful in estimating future cash flows ofan entity

Lastand Cash Equivalents’, as referred to in the statememn of cash flows are the samo as presceied on the face
ol the consolidated statement of financial position. "Cash Flows' are inflows and outflows of cash and cush
culvalents.

Ihe statement of cash flows reports cash flows during the period classilied by operating, investing and
tinancing activities as defined hereunder:

Operating Activities: are the principal revenue gengrating activities of the reporting cntity and other
activities that are not classified as investing or fi pancing activities,

fvesting Activities: are the acquisition and dSisposal of long-terin assets and otbier long term
vestineits,

Firancing Actvities: are activities that result i Chiinges in the size and composttion of the contributed
equity and berrowed capital of the Financial Instiution,
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o \ACCOUTANT
AL

S0
8/ 6

-
A
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E_n Company Limited
il Slalemonts
A 2005 {July 16, 2018}

AL A Adowances har Imgairmient

3
2076 Asar 1 207S Asor 32 2074 Shrawan 07
Specific aliowancoes for impairment
Balance at Sawan1 o
Impairmenl loss for the year
Charge far ll\c-r year
Recovengsirevarsal during Lhe year
Wnip-offs
g faEle va on fofeign t
Other movemen!
Balanco al Asar and
Colloctive allowances lor impairment
s rbgiance Gl Sawan 4 WABH L
Wipairmeny ioss tor tne yoar 12 G980 T30
Ghargedreversal) dar the yosr [ 880, 720
Loaghange ata van on foreign ¥ Imp
Giher mayemenl
Halance at Asar end 6,347,555 B,368,2/5 8,423,958
Tetal Allowanees lor impairment R - 6,387,555 §.368,275 8,423,959
Invasimoent Socuritios ! 4.4
2076 Asar 31 2078 Aaar 32 2074 Shrawan 0%
Inwesimont securilies measuied al amanteeed cost
hwestmont n cguity measured at FVTOCE - <
Mopal closnng House Lid 164,060 100,000 000
Gl i, 500 G4 400 B 500
3 Total ] e 194,500 wason 194,500
L | Socuriti d at Amartizod Cosl
2076 Asar 31 2075 Asar 32 2074 Snrawan 01
[Jom Securilies
Cavemnment bonds
Savernment reasury bilis
Pactpiil Hastes Hank bonds
ik Mt Hank deposits insirumens
e 154500 [l 144,500
| Lg c Alowances fonimpairmon
) ot B o - 154,500 T awsoo
I 4.8.2: Investmont in Eguity mossurod at fair value Uirough other compreiensive ixcema
2076 Asar 31 2075 A;J:ET =T 207 Shmwam
Eguily Instruments
Cuoled Eguity Socuniies
Unguoted Equily Securilics
Ietal o B - B -
4.8.3: infarmation relating to investmaont in equities
] 2076 Asar 31 2075 Asar 32 2074 Shrawan 01
I cosi Fair vaiue cost Fair valus ekl Fair vatue

Invastmeni in guotod egquity

A e v b,
Shares of Rs... . eaco
. s, |
. Sharos of K5 . cuch
Iweslment in unguoted eguity
te
Shares of ks cach
(201

Shates of s, gach




Multipurposa Fi

For the year ended) y

riee Company Limited

Notes to Fingnclal
i34 Asar 2076 [July 16, 2019

Current lax ascais

%

4.9

2076 Asar 11 2075 Asar 3 2074 Shrawan 01
Currant Lax s5aets
2120000 1202073 1,337,285
Currant ur:liai;ii‘m_l as .
Current yeal Incoms ax liabiiias 2.708,292 2112150 1.520.223
Tax lisbilities of prior penods - - i
Totsl {608,252} (1,510,118} (182,934)
Investrnent in Subsidiares 410
2076 Asar 31 2075 Asar 32 2074 Shrawan 01
Investmaent in quated subsidianes - #
1in unquoted ftet |
TOI:II Invastment H
Less: imparmernt aliowances ! -
Nt carrylng amount f .
4.10.3; Inyesunent in quoted subsidiarios i
LS IR
1
I § =
i 2076 Asar 19 2075 Asar 32 2074 Shrawan &1

Cost Falr Value

Cost Falr Vaive

Cost Fair Valuo




mited

pany |
Statoments
E: :

6§ [July 16, 2019)

ARE u d subsidiaries % y!
'_2'076 Asar 31 2075 Asar 32 2074 Bhrawsn G
Fair Vatuo Cost Fair Value Cast Fair Value
g e L i ‘
Shargs of Re. . caoch
s ottt e IR
Shares afizs. wach . e
L e . e e e e e s :

AL nlomiation relating te subsidiaries of he Bank |

| Percentage of awnerahip beld by
! tho Bank

2076 Asar 31 2075 Asar 32 2074 Shravian 01

£ ity Peres) Dl Dy NEH ()

Prohuiioss) aHocaied duiing e year

2076 Asar 1

Lid

Actumulaten balances of NCas on Asar end 2076

Unviseny paig (o NG

20735 Asar 37 2004 Shrawan 01
- . Ltd _-.....L[d
Eauiy inles et by MO %) -
Prafil(loss; aliocaiea dunng the year
Accumulaled balances of NG| as an Asar ond 2075
Dnidiand Paid lg [1/o4]
inwvesimenl in Associates anm
“-‘;0'#& Asar 31 2075 Asar 32 2074 Shrawan 01
Iment in quoled
In n
Tatal Invesunant -
Losz Imparmenl Allcwancoes
el Cacnying Amount i B
4311 0n s guoted
ik 2075 Asar 32 7074 Asar 39
”Cos“:m‘ Fair Value Cost Fair Yalue "?o:t_!_ Fair Value
) e bt o .
Shares of Hs sach
Fid % el
Shares of Rs. wacn
Total - i i - o
inung 1
2015 Asar 31 2075 Asar 37 207 Asar 31
N Cost Fair Waluo Cast Fair Value Cost  Fair Value
Lld o} ; == o -
Snanes ol s el
..... [}
i Emrw! s




Multipurpase Flagace Campany Limited
“Nates 16 Financial Statemsnts
Far the year endid 31 Asar 2078 (July 18, 201§

4.91.0 relating 1o L of tha Bank

PR Percentages of Cramership heid by Bank
2076 Asar 31 Z07TS Asar 32 2074 Asar 31

' 4.11.4: Equity value of sssociabes

- 2076 Asar 31 2075 Asur 32 2074 Asar 31

Tolal

invesiment properties 412

2076 Asar 11 2075 Asar 32 2074 Shrawan 01

Investmanl properiies measured at fair

valug

Balance a5 on Shrwawan 01, "

Additran/disposal dudng Ihe yaar ! 3
Nel changes in faif vaiue during the year -
Adjurtmaniiansher

Met amaunt = i ) .

Investment properties maasured ot
casl

Balance as on Shrwswan 01, BBd, 541 654,541 654,541
Addtionidisposal duning ihe year 5,647,508 E f
Adjustmanviransfor . -

Ascumulated depreciation

Accumulated Impsfrrnarﬁ loss - . -
Hel amoum 5,312,349 Gk, 541 64,541
Tatal 5,312,349 664541 654,541

Ctnar Assets 416

076 Asar 1 75 Asar 32 2074 Shrawan 01

Agsels held for sale
Bills recaivable

Accounts chalivable 2.10?.215 164,150 218,623
Acerved locome : ’
Propayments and Deposis ’ b 5 ' 191,208 235.010
incoms 1A% depost o ) o )
-aE;!r.\‘;b.um.pla}ae iixpenanm

omer T e ) 29,873 534

Totzl* 31,960,754

13527503
14,445,537

Oue 1o Banks and Financial Instittions 417

2079 Asar W 2075 Asar 22 2074 Shrawan §1

Money Market Deposis

ln-lur_t-a_nk bomowing
Ouher deposds from BFls
Satiement and cleanng accounts

Ot uapavsl-:;rmm BF(s
Yedai 5 7 %

Dus (0 hepal Rastra Bank 414

2076 Asar 34 2075 Asar 32 2074 Shrawan 01
Ralinange from HREB -
Giandivg Liguidy Faclity 1]

Lander of Last repodt tacility from NRB

Total .

I o
[U { ;.«.ARH’._R’;;?[S fo)
CooUtiTANDS) o
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A
- _-oose Finance Company Limited : :
- -~ Financial Statements ; : L
= czar ended 31 Asar 2076 (July 16, 2019)

1 and Intangible Assets 5 1] 4 74

' Boftware _
e Other Total Asar end

_ars Goodwill

s Purchased . Developed

~—-zwan 01,2074 _ byl gs | )

during the year

S siion
—_—

- =lization

== 2unng the year - -

- -t Revaluation

- z2s on Asar end 2075 - . = y

juning the Year
oo Eiion | )
- czuzation
.= during the year : X
—=nt/ Revaluation .
- =< on Asar end 2076 - - - -

© - :ztion and Impairment
-rawan 01,2074 - -
- -=ztion charge for the year ' =

“z2nt {or the year

- Zzarend 2075 -

son charge lor the year
znt for the year -

p=r=ent

-~ Asarend 2076 - 2 2 =

- =l Work in Progress
= sok Value

Asarend 2074 - _
asarend 2075 # . -
Asar end 2076 _ - - = i
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] : R 1
RMullipurpose Cinance Campany

Notes to finzacial Statepleals
Far lhe year andied 31 Asar 207

b

Darivative Financial Instrumonts

2078 Asar 32 2074 Shrawan 01

2016 Asar 31
Hotd For Trading Epi
Ikt Ml Swap
Lnency Swap
Fonwaird vachange comract
Cvhar
Hoid far Trading
Interest aw Swan
LIUrTeny Swan:
P areird eachiange contract
ke

Total —%

Bopasits from cuslomers

2078 Asar 31 2075 Asar 32 2078 Siwan 01

AT hanal Cusiomenrs
Eoo

larm deposits 1! agd1,500 5141500
Gl veposls i
Cufrent doposits

Lot

Indwiduzi cusigmers.
Rk Wt RLEEN -
49,353,520

loem Heposis
Having Joposig [ kg

Currund deposils

ket
Total 213,198 458 188,681,477 - ThAE5AETD




£.20.1: Currency wise analysis of deposh from cuslomens

Muttipurpots Finange Company Limited
Motes to Flnanclal Statements
For the year ended 31 2078 [July 18, 2019)

2076 Asar 31

2075 Aspr 32

E0T4 Shrawan O1

Napateso ruped
Indi@n npd

United State a.uilaf £
Geuat Srilian pound ;
Ewin

Japanase yen
Chinese yen

(aT,T" 8 .

bl 213,158,459

189.681.477

154 834 B75

Tetal

273,193,45%

189,681,477

154,934 475

—~Borrowing

4.2

2078 Asar 31

2075 Asar 32

2074 Shrawan 01

Domestic Borrowlng

" Mapai Gevemment
Sl e S
e
Sgb‘fom

Foraign Barowing

Foreign Bank and Financial Insifubons

Hul:halera'lnh;e—l-n_ﬁ;n_éiﬁ“é—aﬁﬁ S

gher Ins&il_xﬂ'ons )

Sub Tedal

Totzl

Provislons

4.27

2076 Asar 11

075 Asar 12

2674 Shrawan 01

Pravisiens fof redundancy
Provigicons for rws:ru.cl.nri.m;_ At
Pencing legal 1SSUES ang 1ax [tigaton
Dnelﬁus Contracls I ’ )
Other

4.22,1: Movemant In Provision

2076 Asar 1

2075 Asar 12

2074 Shrewan 01

Balance 41 Shrawan 01 [start of year}
Proyisens made dunng e year

Provisions used

Unwing of iscount

Balange nl Assr and (end of year}

Other liabilities

4,23

2076 Asar 31 2075 Asar 32 3074 Shrawan 01
Liabiliies far amioyeas definad banefd oblgations 3,348,150 2.507.023 2284376
Liabihites lot long service leave 1,651,487 1881487 1,252,364
S.nori..-li:r.m uhplcyne.;h_e}n‘s - )
Bilis payabie = T
Credrars and accruals 360352 411564
:'ni'a'};{b_a‘{a;i:nn_n's s 15152360 2059 249
Interest payible on borwn" g
Liabilies on dulemed gram incomé
Unpalg Dwidend
Uisoiitis undar Flnanca Lowse
Employes bonus payable EE 2,186,103 1,182,573 1,868,150
ihe s 469,125 B33, 528 95;4;544

23,715,222 13,582,708 9,539,385
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Multipurpose Finani:é Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Asar 2076 (July 16, 2019)

4.23.1: Defined Benefit Obligations

The amounts recognised in the staternents of financiais positions are as follows -

2076 Asar 31

2075 Asar 32

Preseni value of unfunded obligations
Present value of funded obligations
Total present value of obligations

Fair value of plan assets

Present value of net obligations

Recognised liability for defined benefit obiigationé -

4.23.2: Ptan Assets
Plan assets comprise of the following:

2076 Asar 31

2075 Asar 32

Equity securities
Government bonds
Bank deposit
Other

Total §

Actual return on plan assets 5

4.23.3: Movement in the present vaiue of defined benefit obligations

2076 Asar 21

Asar 32

o

207

Defined benefit obligations at Sawan 1
Actuarial losses
Benefits paid by the plan

Current service costs and interest

Defined benefit obligations at Asar end e .




Multipurpose Finance Cbr;npany Limited
Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Asar 2076 {July 16, 2018)

4.23.4: Movement in the fair value of plan assets

2076 Asar 31 20735 Asar 32

Fair value of plan assets at Sawan 1
Contributions paid into the plan
Benef-its paid during the year
Actuanal (losses) gains

Expected return on plan assels

Fair value of plan assets at Asar end

4.23.5: Amount recognised in profit or loss

2076 Asar 31 2075 Asar 32

Current service costs
Interest on obligation
Expected return on plan assets

Total

4236 Amount recognised in other comprehensive income

2076 Asar 31 2075 Asar 32

Actunal {gain)/ioss

Total

4.23.7: Actuarial assumptions

2076 Asar 31 2075 Asar 32

Discount rate
Expected return on plan asset
Future salary increase

Withdrawal rate

o




pase Smanco Camgddny Limited

Maoles Lo Finaneiil Statomont

For lhe year onded 31 Asar 20

%
Debl securitios issued 3 L 424
i 2076 Asar 31 2075 Asar 32 2074 Stravean 01
Pitiar secum At Hmomses sl ) N - i - o
Total
Subardinaled Linbilities 425
S
T anre Asar 1 15 Rsar 37 2074 Shrawan 01
|tpdeomatle proleronce shares
Live pr shares (imbilit il 3
oihe ; "
Tatal =+ &
Share capitai 428
FOYE Asar 31 2078 Asar 32 2074 Shrwwan 01
Cranary shares T A s s00 A1,473.600 1473600
Convenible preference snures (pquity somponent antly} £y
\rredeemable prelerance shares {eguity cempanent oy}
Perpelual detl (ogunty comporan! onlyl e e e e -
Total . AMATIEOD 41,473,600 41,473,600
@.26.1; Ordinary Sharos
2076 Asar 31 0TS Anar 12
10 000 Goe 100 000 200
; :
Aty Sl G0 W TR0 vach {i
R TE T 41173500 £ A75.800
Ol Shares 82 M 100 cach §
o :
Subseribed and paid up capital H alaesE00 41,443,600 LUaTdBan
4va, 736 Orainary Snares @ NPH 100 sash |
tatal 41,473,600 41,473,500 11,473,600
4.26.%2: Ordingry share awnorship
i
20716 Asar 31 P05 Asar 32
Persont Amount Persent Amount
omestic ownershig 134 41493800 A1.472 600
Mol Govenment |
bl
A7 class liconsed insttutiong
O ncensed nsliutions Il
Chi nsuglions
frubhc Fl . 1,588 440 16, b9 440
"4 384,150 24,884 160

Liher ]

Foraign awnorship

Totai T am

45,473,600

A41.473.600




Muitipurpose Finance Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Asar 2076 (July 16, 2019)

Details of more than 0.5% ordinary share ownership 4.26.3

Name Shares Amount %
Ajit Kumar Mishra 37336 3733600 9.00%
Arbind Kumar Batsya 60561 6056100  14.60%
Jagdamba Devi Jha 21298 2120800  5.14%
Phul Mishra ‘ o T2 717200 187%
BinaMisha 34431 3443100 8.30%
Amar Kant Jha - 49738 4973800 12.00%
Rajnish Kumar Singh ' 8295 820500  2.00%
I5ip Narayan Shah egéé' -?SESDO _EO"/:
Bishal Pandit T Tee3 663600 1.60%
Menaka Singh - 6636 663600 1.60%
Nabaneet Mishra - 663 663600 1.60%
Total 245,975 24,597,500 59.31%




Multipurpese Financa Company Limitad
Notes to Financial Statements
For the yaar ended 31 Asar 2076 {July 18, 2019)

Ragarvos 4.27

2076 Asar 21 2075 Asar 32 2074 Shrawan 01
Statulory general resarve 19,101,321 B.455 530 7072827
Exchange equalization reserva -
Gomorate social responsibilty resérve T wss 73578
S .__.1___..:%};;’_ dbo et .. o - is = -

600,060
23,872,950 meassw -
- 67.842 6TBaz 87842
44,510,408 33,180,173 7014447
c and commi a2
2076 Asar 31 7076 Asar 32 7074 Shrawan 01

Coningent liabilities

Undrawn and undisbursed faclities
Capital commitment

Lesss Commilment

Litigation

Total .




'Multipurpiose Finance Company Limited

© Notes o Financial Slatements
For the year ande__d 81;.Aé_ar"20?6 {July 16, 2018)

Interest Income e

4.28

2076 Asar 21

2075 Asar 32

“Placement w n bank andf z_nc::al Insn

Loans and adva"lces Lo banks and financial |n5I|luIIOﬂs

Loans an:i advances ta customers 38,917,348 373526968 |
Other imeresl Income - -

Total interest income 38,517,348 37,926,968

interest Expenses 4.30

e

2076 Asar 31

2075 Asar 32 |

Due to bank and financial institutions
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Depusnls from customers

Debt secwlt:es i
Subordmaled Ilabll lles
Other

19,085,142 !

Total interest expanse

26,645,982

19,085,142

Fees and Commission income

4,31

2076 Asar 31

2075 Asar 32

Lean administrat'

Ssmce fees

Conbortrum Tees
Cornrm*ment feas o
DD!‘I_JSWJM feas
CI’\'.‘Ei[l cardfﬂ.TM :5suance and renewa! fees
Prepaymen; and bwap‘fees
investment banki.n.g.fae.s
Asset maﬁégemeﬁi-f;g; o

Brcme.age fees
Remsttanoe Fees

COI‘nmIShIOI'I 0
Comm:ssmn
Lommnssmn on share underwriti

Locker rental

Cther fags and mmmlsmn income

251825021

1701647 .27

Total Fees and Commission Income

2,516,250

1,701,647

Feas and Commission Expense

4.32

Banx

Particulars

2076 Asar 31

2075 Asar 22

ATM management fees
VISNMaster card fees
Guarantes commission

Brokﬂrage

oo T!Swm fegs

Remnlance fees and GCII'I'II'!'!ISSIOH :
Dther fees and commission expense

Total Fees and Commission Expense




Multi_r;urb@:’_s _F’i'_ﬁ:lncc Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements
Forthe year ended 31 Asar 2076 {July 16, 2019)

Net Trading income i 4.33

Bank
2076 Asar 21 2075 Asar 32

Changes m fdbf' valua cf !rad:ng assels : 5 2
Gmnﬂoss on dssposai uf tra:n_ng assets' 3

interast income on trddmg assets

Gamr’ross |o gn ax -hange
O{her 8] a
Net trading income s L i z
Other Operating income il ; 4.34
- Bank
2076 Asar 31 2075 Asar 32

Foreign exchange revaluation gain

of |nvastmeni securmas

Dwtdend on eanty instrurnen_t

GamJIcuss C|r|  sale DE propery and 3qu1pmanl

Galnf’loss an saie of investment property

Operatmg Iea se income

Gainfloss on sale cf guld and s:iver




Multipurpose F':Irmn:_c_:_Ccmpmy Umitey
Notas to Financial Slatements
For the year anded 31 Asar 2076 (July 16, 2019}

Impalrment charge/{reversal) for loan and Dl.h.ifilusses : i 4.35
Bk
| 2076 fsar 31 2075 Asar 32
Impairnent charged{reversal) on loan and advances o BF s i 1
Imgairment chargel(reversal) on loan and advances to customers | | } (2.980.720) 464,318
Imparment charge:(ravarsal) on financisl | W :
g ai 1 charge/(, 3 o pl W with bank and hnangis ;nshwuo_ns
Impalrrnan.t th.arga.f-:.réversi.lj af.\-p.r;pnr.:.)' ar:d ie&n.J;p-man: 5
I.rnpa.lrmenl charue.'[ravnrsal} ﬁn Qéncr;m.ll and imangisle assals
t.m:.::al.ﬁ'nanl .c-n.n.:gala;.[m\rars.al} an in.\;.a;t.'nen‘. proparties _ T
Total 1 (2,880,720} 4,316
Personnel Expenses 4,36
i . Bank
Particulars 2076 Asar 31 2075 Asar 32
Salary R 2.553.724 2.682.341
Allowances dl 70,80C
Bpiravnd = $ £ , ; e e o
Providn B T ma
Unilorm o i3
Traimng and development expinsas
Losva encashment
Medical B
INSUrBNCE
Employees incenbves
Cash-setied share-based péymnnls
F.erl-sion fipensds
Finance expense under NFRSs
Otner expanses related to stalf . 404,501 28208101
Sublotal 305,841 3,620,596
Empioyees Bonus i 1,003,129 1,182,673
Grand total. 4,608,870 5,003,565
Other Operating Expenss 4.37
Bank
2076 Asar 31 2075 Asar 32
Oirgctors' fee ;
Direciors’ pxpensa ¢ 74,400 74400
Auditors’ remuneration - T 170000 170,000
Cther audit relaled expenses : e oo '
Pralessional and fegal expanse T 153,000 13,000
Office agminisiralion expense 2.457 693 1733382

Cperaung lease expensa
sa of investmaent propenias

Carporate soua responsibilly expans
Onercus laase provisons

Quhert Expansas 988138 S6352.42
Tetal 2,949,606 2,457,134
Depreciation and Amortisation 4.38
Bank

2076 Asar 1 2075 Asar 37
Deprecialion on property and equipment 280259 28878
Deaprociabon on mnvesiment property
Amertizaten of inlangibie assets !
Total ) 280,249 268,718




Muitipurpose Finance Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Asar 2076 (July 16, 2019)

Office Administration Expense 4.371

2076 Asar 31 2075 Asar 32

Electricity & Water 200,198 211,884
Repair & Ma:ntenance" - o 64,330 120,525
Insurance - . ) ) ‘149.707 -
Postage, Telex, Telephone 8 Fax B 52,791 84,226
Travelling Allowances & Expenses. I 357,420 202,800
Entertainment o 1,203,328 998,965
Bad Debts'&riéﬁé_{' S 191,209 -
Printing & Stationery N N ' 95,358 56,800
Books & Periodicals ‘i 19,850 24,790
Advertisements and Busmess Promot_lans o 118,700 53,392
Total ; 2,452,893 1,733,382 -




Wulipurpose Finance Cempany Limited
Neotas fo mnancial Slatemants
For tha year endad 31 Asar 2076 {July 18, 2019)

Non Operating Income

4.38

Bank

2076 Asar 3t

2075 Asar 32

Rocovery of lean wnttan off

Cthet income
Towl %
Non Operating Expo};;;" S 4.40
! Hank
1 2076 Azar 31 2075 Asar 32
Loan writlen off o, 4
Rsoundancy provisien
Expanse of r&slruclurlng
Other expense i i ' o 0
Total
Income Tax Expanses 4.41
Bank
A 2076 fsar 31 2075 Asar 32
Current tax exponse T
Current yoar 2.756.29&
Adjusiments for -anr years 187,481
Ooferad lax axpense
Qnginalicn a'nd reualsnl of :em 11.041,955) (527.785)
Changes n lax rate Z
Recogniton of prenmish,' unmcogmzue tax los58s
Total income tax expense 1,853,634 1,852,337
4.41.1: Reconclliation of tax expense and accounting prefit
Bank
2076 Az 11 2075 Asar 32
Profit before tax statad in Staternent of Profit or Less 10,031,292 11.82%.72%
Adj far NFRS r feas rements sacluded in current tax o
i mamemal intorast income of | lsans und advances {acorual ac.counnnw 3,455,558 12,780,435
- reversal of Ias.s islon an investment sacunues 245 BEY
Profit before tax prior 16 remeasuremants regquired under NFRS : 13,390,850 8,315,151
-s that urf not deductible for lax purp;::c
s o , e P .
Gratuny Provision 143,200 257,662
Peralty 5,874 104
Losn loss provision ' 4.047.756
Capilal nature expense chaiged on revenug & 47'.802'
Cepreciation charged as Company Act 1 260,259
Assets Writlen O 181,209
Rapal.rs DISBHCIWM ;; p-ar IT Act {in axcess of 79 ol te plock) (61.853;
Less: Tax offect on exempt income
Provision wiitten back on Other Assets
Prowision fef non banking assels (5547 808)
Excess Loan lou grawsm 83 per mcome lax 8CE ) B ) IZSBU?EG} -[IZBD.-'IE:'.;]
Daprééaﬁgn cnarped 23 per Incame Tar (453,001 [256.258';
Ganon Sala of Fixad nsm.s
Taxabla lncoma 9,027,639 9,040,633
Cumani Tax Expansa @ ‘.!U% o taxable ncome 2.708:252 2712180
Previos year lax expenses  187.481 7828
Ceferred Tax Expense) [income) (1,041,523) (927.788)
Total incomae tax expenso 1,651,834 1,852,327
Effactive Lax rate J0% 0%




As on 31 Asar 2076 (July 16, 2019)
(As per NRB Regulations)

Multipurpose Finance Company Limited
Statement of Distribtion of Profit or Loss

2076 Asar 31 2075 Asar 32
“oening balance in retained eamings 18,973,497 10,488,867
wet profit or {loss) as per statement of profit or loss 8,177,458 9,977,407
_ess: appropriations (-) / contributions (+): _ e s A S
a. Gengral reserve o o (1,635,482) _{1,393,003)
b. Foregn exchangg fluctuation fund S ' o
c. Capital redemption reserve _ e S
d. Carporate social responsibility fund_ . I _(81.775) _(88774)
‘e. Employees’ training fund\ - s - B
f. Other § -
>rofit or (loss) before regulatory adjustment 25,433,688 18,973,497
Requlatory adjustment : ustment: g e S e s 5
a. Interest receivable (-)/ previous__qgg[gd_intg;e_g;_rq@_i_ved ) _ (2088321) 2
b. Short loan loss provision in accounts (-/ reversal (+) _ s _ B - PN S
c. Short provision for possible losses on investment (-)/ reversal (+) [ - B
: d. Short loan loss provision on Non Banking Assets (-)/resersal (+) (6,312,349) B -
6. Deferred tax assets recognised () reversal (*) _ (936,516) .
f. Goodwill recognised (-)/ impairment of Goodwill (+) - e T
g. Bargain purchase gain recognised (-)/resersal (+) i — s S W
h. Acturial 'o_§s_.r.f-'c_ogni_%e_d,mgve_rw ¢ R - s
i. Decrease in depreciation expenses (-) / increase (+) (278,782)

Distributable profit or (loss)

15,820,720

N

O Qs

Q[ CHA

W
> \ACCOUNTANTS
A
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5. Disclosure and additional information

5.1. Riskmanagement &

Risk is an inherent feature of any business and it drives an entity towards income generation. Likewlise, risk
manageiment objective of the Financial Institulion s Lo strike balance between risk and retwrn, and ensure
spuitum risk-adjusted return on capital. A reasonable Tevel ol returr Is essential for sustainability ol the

business. However, taking higher risk in search of hipher edrnings increases the risk of [ailure of business.
Thus effective risk management is a must lor sustainabili . of business. Towards this cnd the Financial

Institution has implemented robust risk management architecture as well as policies and processes approved

by the board ol directors. These encempass independent identification, measurement and management of

risks across various facets of banking operation.

The Financial Institution takes on the capital adequacy norms pursuant o the central bank's statutory
provision under Basel requirements, like ICAAP, Risk Management Guidelines ete. The determinants to this
end are the past experiences with the products, Financal Institution’s own risle assessment culture and
continpency management for unpredictable situations,

5.1.1. Credit Risk

Banking business in Nepal is exposed to Credit Risk to o much larger extent. It's business is also copcentrated
in its Credit Risk Exposure. Bulk of its earnings s gencrated [rom credit related business, be it in form of
interest income or Commission income. Given the volatile ccopomic environment that the Financial Institution
eperates in, the margin between performing loan and non-performing loan can often be very thin Therefore it
ssalways g majer threat that any of the Finanaal Instivation’s eredit customers may default

Frnanclal institution has abways placed Credit Risk Management ina high priovity Hist. The Financal Institution
bas Credit Policy and Investment Policy in place which guides the do's and the don'ts in business generation.
13

Auy peaeration of risk assets and their impact on fong wrm value generation s well deliberated o every credit

proposals. Risks and returns are properly weighed and nsk mitigating measures are explicitly spelled out.

The Financial Institution makes credit extension decision by assessing each business propoesal thoroughly. it
also ensures that the inherent credit risks that are associated with the business are addressed appropriately
through coverage of better safety margin, additional collateral back up and lower exposure to keep the
buswess at low leverage.

Within the Credit Risk Management, processes are well defined where cheeking, controb and lndependence of
the credil extension, risk assessment, review, monitering wnd exposure accounting is fully complied with. Al
such actions and processes are properly recorded, reported and discussed, These reports on need basis and on
@ defined frequency are put to the oversight of Senior Manapement, Risk Management Comueuttee and the
Hoard.

5.1.2.  Market Risk

Financial Institution ensures functioning ol the jobs in fine with the policies and procedures and
sappests/recommends for necessary steps colfectively weaddress the risk on interest rate movement ete.

Uverall mvestment made and necessary analysis of the investments, including appropriate suggestions, are
issued from Treasury which reviews the porifolio peviodically. Treasury is independent and reports to Chiel
Risk Officer. Any credit impairment in the investment books are accounted for, lor faiv assessment of the
portiolio. The Financial Institution assesses the open position_on daily basis and calculates risk exposure for
allocation of required capital in line with Basel provisions.

1
i




y rarket is considered as active if transactions for assets or ltabilities take place with sufficient frequency and
colume to provide reliable pricing information on an arm'’s ]eng;t'h:basis. The Financial Institution measures
e value of an instrument at active market price without adjustment for factors such as transaction costs.

Lavel? g

e value measurements are derived based on observable inputs, which are either observed directly such as in
s of peices or observed mdivectly such as i tepins o letors that are derived (rom prices. Such observable
nputs include: i !

guoted prices lor similar instruments in active markets; :

quated prices for identical or similar instruments in innctive markets;

firancial instruments are valued using mode!s where al] signilicant inputs are observabic.

ndrket for a Ouancial instodment is not active, thes e Financial nstiwution establishes fair value using a
ansation technigue, Valuation technigues mclude using recent armvs leaglh  transactions between
aowiedgeable, \av[l_i'n'u:; parties (if available), reference w e current fair value of other instrumoents that are
ubstantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models.

e chosen valuation technique makes maximum use of market inputs, relies as Httle as possible on estimates
specific to the Financial Institution, incorporates all factors that 'market participants would consider in setting
s price, and is consistent with accepted econumic methodologies for pricing financial instruments,

tpels to valuation techniques reasonably represent markel expectations and measures of the risk-return
wCors herent i the financial mstrument. The Fiancial ustitution calibrates valuation techrigues and tests
e forvalidity using prices from observable curvent atarket transactions in the same instramet or based on

Jiec available observable market data.

“he best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at imtial recognition is the bansaction price, ie. the
atr value of the consideration given or received, univss the lalr value of that instrument is cvidenced by
comparison with other observable current marker vansactiens in the same  instrument, e, without
nodilication or repackaging, or based on a valuation twehnique whose variables include only data from
paservabic markets.

Wlien transaction price provides the best evidence of fair value at initial recognition, the financial instrument
s indatly measured at the transaction price and any difference between this price and the value subsequently
shtained from a valuations model is subsequently recopnized m profit or loss on an appropriate basis over the
life of the instrument but not later than when the valuation is supported wholly by observable market data or
e transaction is closed oul, '

level3d o

Fude value measurements are derived using valuatton fechiziques o which current market tapsactions or

eottd are fan walued using viluation niadels which

somcrvabie market data are notavailable. Under this, st
nave been tosted against prices or inputs to actual market tansactions and make use of the Financial
sstittion's best estimate of the most appropriate mode! assumptions. Unobservable inputs have a significant

clfect on tire mstrunent's value.

Valuation models are adjusted to reflect the spread for but and ask prices to rellect costs to close out positions,
credit and debit valuation adjustments, liquidity spread and limitations in the models. Also, profit or loss
caleulated when such financial instruments are first recarded (day 1 profit o loss) is deferred and recognized
anly when the inputs become observable or on de- recognition of the insirument.




Valuation techniques include, among others, applying Nt P’- sentValue and Discounted Cash Flow Models

pver similar instroments for which obser\fﬂi:lv ket pl uLs

Aeswmiptions and opuls wsed ino valuatlon models E!‘..L'_’_l._ld;)- ve and benchmark interest rates, risk

qees, foreign exchange rates, capected price

volatiitties and corrections.

Fair values reflect the credil risk of the mstrument and :nL}miL' dT,ijL!‘ai"nL‘r]L‘\ to take account of the credit risk of
counterparties involved where appropriate. Fair value L’stmml, s ubtained from models are adjusted for any
other factors, such as liquidity risk or modet uncertainties; to the fextent that the Financial [nstitulion assumes
a third-party market participant would take theniinto cn,!c_:mmt n a pricing transaction.

5.2  Capital management

Capital 1y crucial component in any business and even more so fn case of Financial institutions. 1lence, capital
is regelited so®E w withstand the impact of adverde develppments in its internal operations aned ity external
operating environment. Similarly, the Financial Insttution needs to maingain sufficient capital for business

growth.

The Financial institution has been able to ;,an. tae and retin substantial earnings in order 1 ensure adequate
capital formation, as required for its business gr owlh

As per the directive of Nepal Rastra Bank, minimum pai up capit tal requirements for finance companies is Rs.
40U Millkons where as companies current paid up capital 1 Rs. 414 Millions only. Even though the Company
has ssued right shaves from 2076-03-23 tu 2076-15.09 1 could not maintain the required capital and s
remaining unsubscribed 1860721 shaves of promoter group and 626557 shares ol general people are

auction process. Hreg

522  Quantitative disclosures

5.2.2.1 Capital structure and capital adequacy

Partivuars o C s Amount i KBs,
Taer 1 Lapital (Core Capital) (CETT v AT1)
Commgn Fqute Tiee 1 {CET 1)
A Pad up Equity Share Capital 41,473,600

B Lty Share Premium

[} Statutory General Reserves : 9,043,641
E Hetmned Carnings : : 186,091,337
Ko Othiy Free Reserve i : B6T, 042
Lo e Goodwill .

Mo Less: Other Deducuons
Adjustments under Pillar 1
Less: Shortfalt in Provision (6.4 a 1) 3

Less: Loans and Facilities extended to Related Parties and Restricted lending
(6.4a)

Cammon Lguity Tier 1 {CET 1) 69,276,420

A Perpetual Non-Comulative Preference Share Capdl

i Perpewad Debt instruments




¢ Stack Prennum
Adaluonai Tier 1 (A1) S

Prer b Capital {Care Capital) (CETY +AT1]

Parucutars

A General loan luss provision
B Investment Adjustiment Reserve
U Assers Revaluation Reserve

b Other Reserves

Supplementary Capital {Trer )

; £
4 i

]

69,276,220

Amountin Rs,
1,908,321

71,184.547

Sutated Bnormaton sbout the Subordinated o Debts with information on the outstanding amount,

nuatunty, wnount raised during the year and amount cligihle to be reckoned as capital funds:

Qualifying Capital
Core Capital (Tier 1 Capital)
Supplementary Capital {Tier (1)
‘total Capital Fund (Tier Fand Tier 11)

v+ Capital Adequacy Ratio

Capriad Adeguacy Ratips
Cominon Hguity Tier 1 Rato
tore Capial Ratg 1ier )

Totat Capital Ratis - Tier 1+ Tier )

5.2.2.2 Risk Exposure

*

RESK WEIGHTED EXPOSURES
Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk
Risk Weighted xposure for Operational Risk
Risk Weighted Exposure for Markel Risk
Add: 3% of the total RWE add by Supervisory Review
Add: 3% Caplal Charge for Operational Risk
Total Risk Wewghted Exposures {athe)
¢ Risk weighted exposures under each 11 categuries of Credit Risk
Categories of Credit Risk

1 Chiims on Government and Central Banlk

{ (&

Clarms on Other Finandial Entitios

3 Claims on Banks

4+ Clalms on Domesue Corporites and Securities Firms
5 Uaimson Regulatory Retail Portlolio

Clans secured by resideatial properties

laims seeared by Commercial real estale

4 Faiat due clanns

Amount in Rs,
069,276,220
1,908,321
71184542

%
22857%
22.57%

_2319%

Risk weighted expusures fur Credit Risk, Markel sk md Operational Risk

Amount in Ky,
28322285107
16,818,269.53
3.363,653.91
3,034,048
504,544
306943371

Risk Weighted Exposure

53U8 30457

217 344,3490.10




S ruwl Risk clanms : 4
HE o Uther Assels 60,479 157 00

PEU Batance Sheel lems

dosal Lredin Riss Weightea Exposure TRRA2L ERT BT

= Total Risk Weighted Exposure calchiation tabie

Amount in Rs. ¥inancial Institution
:. ' 28322285167
Gperativnal Risk Bxposure g . ' 16,818.26%.453

336365307

Risk Weighted Exposures

Credit Risk Expusure

Market sisk Bxposure

Add $9 of the towal R add by Supervisory Review ' . 2034044
Adid: 3% Capital Charge for Operational Risk | 504,548
Total Risk Weighted Exposures = A 306943371
Total Core Capital Fund 69,276,220
lowlCapial Fupd - o BB e
Total Tier 1 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures 22.57%

Foad Cagal Fund ¢

o Total Risk Weighted Bxposure 29194

= Amountof Non-Perlorming Assets (buth Gruss and Net)

NPR In full figure

Non-Performing Loans Gross Amount Loss Provision Net Amount

a Restructured and rescheduled ISR I B K | Y37, 245.55 17.807,475.45

B Sub-Standard LR A00 18349529 00 5.548.587.00
Bowtl Tl W e BOG75900 806, 759,00

4 Luss o i, TGS BH5,709.635

Total 28 642,054.63 4479,233.18 2%,162,821.45

5.2.3  Compliance with external requirement

The Financial Institution is subject to compliance requirement under NRB Directive No.1/075 which stipulated
a minimum Total Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR} of 11.00%. The Financial Institution complied with this
requirement at all times during the reporting perivd. Compliance position at the reporting date is presented

ereunder

Camal Paramerer Hegurement Froancial Insticution
Misimam Cemmuon Eguily Capital Ralw d ' 4004 16.68%
Capital Conservation Buller 250 , 5.96%
Misimum common equity plus capital conservation buller } T00% 22,64%
Minimum Tier 1 Capital {Excluding conservation buffer) ' 6.00% 22.57%
Minimum Total Capital Excluding conservation bulfer) : 3.50% 23.19%
Minimum Total Caputal (including conservation bu ter) 11.010% 29.15%
Leverage Ratio F60% 22839




5.3 Classification of financial assets and financud ii-a!_lilfi:l-m_js :

Prancial assets and financial Habilities are Im-mu*m Gran ung1 uniig hasis einer at aie value or al amortized

cost, The summary of signiticant accounting ])'Ullcl{;‘%i deseribe § how different classes of financial assels and
o . - e 14 & % Ty .
financial labilities are measured, and how income and t,\;,e!im. : muludmg fair value gains and losses, are

recognized.

E i
LH

The following tables provide a reconciliation o[ the car rvm )
a5 these are presented in the respective line items ol ((mwlmatcd stalcmem of financial position and as per

2 i) (S\mtl, of financial assets and financial liabilities

s chassilication i accordance with NFRS Y. L

Financial nstitution -
Ul ib-jul 2019

NER Ul lgare

—rh

Measured al Fair Vitlae | 1 Measured ay

FVTRL FYTOO Amartized Cost

Tatal

Froaneial Assels:
Cagh and Cash Bgquivilents

taatnd Advaices ToLustonmers

A0, 138,794

SRS ]

49,138,704

220,359,581

Uit Fanncial Axsels

AURAIR.GTY

ABT450,6F

_E-_u:;,'.n: pad Laabialities " .
Depusits fiom Lustomers 213, 19454 213,196459
Tutad Financial Liabilities L1190 459 213198459
Finaneial lnstitution - MNPl fipure
al 16-ful-20148
I\'iE'.l.‘:'lIII'L‘.:‘u Al Bair Valae . - Sdpaaured
FVTPL nl'\-'"l'{JlfI Ameetized Cost Tuolal
Financial Assets
Lashand Lash Eguivaients 400056 40805 631
Foarsand Advances o Customers JREE TR 144,005,932
| esliad I-'.u;: wial Assets S 2A4H0% 566 244,804 566
Z"Illé;]‘al'ii"i Laabihities B
Depud it m Lastomers H9OHT AT 149,681.477
Totet Financial Lindnlitles _ 19681 ATT 189681477
Financial institation - M;R full figure
at k5-Jul-2817
Mensured al Fate Valu Measured at
FVTPL VTGO Amaortived Cost Toual
Friiench Assels
35,990,067 5930.674

Lasliond Lagh Bguivalents

Papns and Asdvamees Yol uswanuny

F 7 A e ks

Lo 456,09




Jiash BFriia i Assers : il ! ; . P 203, 102,73

Fingmneial Liabiiities

Depasits from Customers 4 15 P i 154,934,875 LA UE4HYE

Total Financial Liahilives : A 154,934,875 154,934,875

wn
(=

Operating Segments : : 3] |
Francial institution is providing service relaidd to Financial Intermediation that is vore business of
deposit mobibisation and lending activities along with ather auxiliary Financial Inslitutioning services

anly. Further Financial [nstitution is providing W wervices [rom one district only, Separate operaling

Ltien considering its scope ol services and

segments reporting 15 not relevant for the b

place of services.

5.5 Share options and share based payment

The Financial Institution did not have any share options or share-based payment transactions in the reporting
period or the earliest period presented in this financial statements.

5.6 Contingent liabilities and commitment

Conungent Linbilities are possible obligations whese existence will be conlivmed only by uncertain future
cvents or present obligations where the transter of ceonumic heselits is not probabie or cannat be reliably
measured. The Financial Institution applies NAS 37 = "Provisions, Lonlingent Liabilitics and Contingent Assets”

in accounting of contingent liabilities and commitments,

‘o meel the financial needs of customers, the Financial Institution enters into wvarious irrevocable
commutments -and. contingent liabilities. These consist or financial guarantees, jetter of credit and other

dedriwn comantments to lend. Guarantees, Letters of Credita ad Acceptances under Letters of Credit commits
e Vinancial nstitution to make payments on hebal! of customors in the tvent of a specific act, generally

robated wotrade transections and performance wimder contsatls, Phey carry astidar credi rsloro e

Hin.

It the normal course of business, the Financiil Insttatioe makes various freevocable commitments and incurs
certain contingent liabilities with legal recourse to it customers. Even theugh these obhgations may not be
recosnized on reporting date, they do contain credit risk and are therefore a part of the overall risk profite of
the Financial Institution. Accordingly Lhey are disclosed uniess remote.

Explanatory inlormation o the Financial Institution’s conbingent habilities and commitments are given inNote
124

5.7 Related parties disclosures

ln the ordinary course of its business operation the Financial [nstitution has conducted commercial
transactions with parties who are defined as related partics m NAS 24 - ‘Related Party Disclosures’. All those
pransaction were conducted on an arm's length basis except for loans Lo enmiployees at below-market interest
rate availed by Key Management Personnel (KMP} provided by the Financial fnstitution under schemes

uniformly applicahie to all employees.

somsadermg each possible related patty Telilensiin, attenton s divected Lo the substince of the

refatonstop and netmerely the legal formy

-
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Relationship

I Mrs, Phul Mishra lpirinun) 3o
2. LArpana Kuamari b Diveutin

Phakur [T

thir Prasad Bhalia

Ajit Kumar Mishira

3] Me Panchananda Jha 17ty I Manager

5.7.3  KeyManagement Personnel (KMP)

Key Mana

gement Personnel are those persons having auihority
£ F }

controthng the activities of the entity directly or ind

cly. The Beard of Dir
r

dhas KM of the Financial Institution.

{CEOD ) ol the Financial Institution are identi

574  Transactions with Board of Directors NPR

2019 2018

Board mecting lees fallowances

T4 400

B UULTIN

ciand olher buard expenses

Wiy
FaLn

Al buard of directors are non-executive diree

ad board committee meetings as well

tors, V|

[
Dsalud

allowances to cover for

expenses lowards

ccation and periodicals,

Particular 2014

Short Term Employee Benelits

LT T e _
e T28,042.19 706,223.48
Qther current benefits and payments
nL beavhits

57.0 Transactions with Deputy General Manager {Mr Panchananda flra) NPR
%

Partivulars 2010

shorl Teem Emplovee Benelits

tross Salary Payneims

FETOFE O
Giher current benelits and payvments
Fost-emplovimen! benelils

responsibility for planning, directing and

ctors and Cheel Fxocutive Officer

dlurs are entitled Lo meeting fees on attending

.




Transactions and agreements involving KM and thewr Close Family Members (CFM)

nfluence, or be influenced by, that KMP in

Ms ula KMP are those lamily members who may be expected 1w

the

dealings with the Financial lnstitution. They moy ielude K

KMi*s spouse and dependents of the KMP or of the KMFS spouse. CFM are related pariics Lo the Financial

lestituteoe aod the Floarierad Tastriueiar,

for the reported period Lthere have been no payments or transactipns with CFM of KMP excvept In the normal

»of banking business, both for the Financial Insutution and the Financial Institution,
5.8  Mergerand sequisition

The Financial Institution has not entered into any merger and alCr.]Lfi&:itl'U!‘l activities in the reporting period,

5.9 Additional disclosures of non-consolidated entities

e Financial Institution does not have any non-consohidated entities to report for the reporting period and in

the comparative previous period.

So1i Bisclosure effect of transition from previous GAAP te NFRS

de those

s space s for i exeel file. Print out the excel sheets and |

o following items that are pr

& of the financiat statements.

in thissp

L. reconciliation statements prescribed in financial reporting format point 5.10 (NRB Unified directive
no. 4/075 page 199 to page 203) including additional explanatory no
statements presented.

5 for each bine items in all




Multipurpose Finance Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Asar 2076 (July 18, 2018)

5.10 Disclosure effact of transition from previous GMP lo NFRS.

51041, Reconcillation of equity

NPR

2074 Shrawan 01

2075 Asar 32

(16-Jul-2017)

(16-Jul-2018)

(End of last period

Particylars faitz! Eptplanator‘y {Date of Transition) presented under previous
GAAP)
Total equity under Previous GAAP 50,034,591 56,599,606
Adjustments under'NFRSs: '
Revaiuation-of property & equipmenl 1 {18,938) 23,897 947
 Deferred tax 2 384,947 738,820
™ Proposed Dividend 3 5,221,040 6,221,040
income income not real;zed ' 2,490,734 5.271.170
Employee Bonus [_265.852}
-Ad justment of investment propemes ! 664,541 66—13&1
O1her ' -
Total Adjustment to equlty 8,742,324 36,627,666
59,776,915 93,627,272

Total Equity under NFRSs

Explanatory note:

1. Revaluation of property and equipment

Under pravious GAAP, plant and machinary were deprecialed using cenam rale. Under NFRS, the bank assess the useful life of the plant and
machinary and deprecialing the same on SLM basis. The impact on f_:quny has been explained below:

Particulars {16-Jul-2017) {16-Jul-2018)

Traferred to retained earnings (for plant and machinary used for useful life) (18,938) (18.838)
Excess depreciation charged undar previous GAAP nor reversed 143,938
Revaluation of fixed assets 23,672,950 |
Net increase In Equity (18,838) 23,997,947 |

2. Deferred tax

Under NFRS , deferred tax are mainly created due to accrual interest income booking , reversal of loan loss provision, reversal of investment and
aciurial valution impact of defined benefit obligation; Below are the imapct on equities.

3. Proposed divided

Particulars {16-Jul-2017) {16-Jul-2018)

Reversal of DTA as per GAAP (5,682) 7.499
DTL created on grauity 390,628 467,904 |
Accrugd income CTA decrease b 233327
Net increase in Equity 384,847 738,520

As per the previous GAAP proposed dividend was treated a cumren! hamhry But as per NFRS, it is not treated as current liability until it is declared

in AGM.

Particulars l(16~jul-2017) (16-Jul-2018)

Proposed dividend transferred to retained eamings. F ok | 5,221,040 5,221,040
Net dacrease In Equity o [_ 6,221,040 8,221,040

)

bk g




Hultipurpose Finance Company Limited 1 &

sotes to Financial Statements bl b s ]
“or the year ended 31 Asar 2076 (July 16, 2018) R
=102, Reconciliation of profit or loss ' ::
il HUETE NPR
i iR 2075 Asar 32
| el (16-Jul-2018)
| Explan story

'

{the latest period presented under previous GAAF)

Deferred tax interest interest income
Opening DTL adjustments
Deferred tax income (expense) for the year (it - i)

Particulars- 1 i _1'5", | ' _
rofit/(l.oss) for the yég“rk_per previous GAAP L] ]| | ’[ 6,965,015
~djustments under NFRSs: i | :
 -Interest Income 5 . A B 2,780,438
Deprecaaﬂon & Afﬁorﬂsaﬂon [ f_ l o _ 143,93
Employee Bonus o : r'265 852)
_ deferred tax (expense) / income ! e 3 353,872
Total Adjustment to profit or loss i | 3,012,392
Srofit or loss under NFRSs ] 9,977,407
Jther Comprehensive Income 23,872,950
Total Comprehensive income under NFRSs Ei 33,850,357
T
Zxplanatory note : b bl {
g NPR
1 Other - !
e
a ) Deferred tax expense : | i
Increase in deferred tax liability due to adjustmelm of plant and rrl'sachma 37,499__
Increase in deferred tax liability due to gratuity 467,994
233327

(384,947)

353,872 |

¥ O

L
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Multipurpose FJnanée Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Asar 2076 (July 16, 201%)

(Explanatory Notes)

|
il
5.10.3.1 Effect of NFRS adoption for the statement of f:n' nzia__ p.osltloJ[
i

Staled harein below is explanation of the deviations between the ﬁgures reporiad i statement of financial position prepared in sccordance with NFRS
and those reported in accordance with previous GAAP at end of FY 20?4;’?5 (Julv 1b 2013}

S.No. ILine ltems in SoFP par NFRS Efx'p_lan'atiu_n caf c;na:‘nf‘;qs resultant of transition to NFRS Figures in Fs.
EN JCurrent Tax Assets a) Ad]'usmd to cufréht "" bilitues {1 .53?.;’89}1
7 Property and equipment a) Low deprectahr,n cha ad transfarred to Retained I.E“a;r'nl.:\.g:s : 118,938)
11 Defarred Tax Llabilitles a) DTA reversal ory d afidn {5.682)
' b) D'TL created on'g al m,r & . . 350,629
17 7 Proposed Dividend a) Prpposed dividend _tre_ns_ferred 0 Retained Eamings. 5,221,040

5.11.3.1 Effect of NFRS adoption for the statement of flnancial position
{Explanatory Notes)

Stated herein below is explanation of the deviations betwsen the figures reported in opening statement of financial position prepared In accordance with
NFRS al the ransition date of 01.04.2074 (July 16, 2017) and those reported in z_acninr_dance with previous GAAP for the same date.

S.Ne. Line ltems in SoFP par NFRS Explanation of cnénges resultant of transition to NFRS GAAP Figures
TTEN Current Tax Assets a)  Adjustsd to current tax liabilitues
7 Deferred tax liabilities a)  Excess depremairon char ged is reversed
] Deferred Tax Assels a} inerease in Jgiqrrec lax fiability due to adjustment of plant and machinary
- b)  increase in deferred tax liability due to gratuity
17 Proposed Dividend a) Proposed dividend fransferred lo Retained Earnings.
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